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About the cover A natural gas:fseled eternal flome (plermed o the cover) was wivedled tn
2003 aind buas brightly as pare of & riverfrons memortal fn Nepervile, inots. Naperville &s
huorme 1o Nieors conporate headguarters and ds fn the hears of Nicor Gas” service territory  am
areg that tncludes more then 2 milion customers who depend on nariral gas to leat homes, lelp
v bustnesses and for countless other wses, In the pages thas follows, youll the pride, spirie
and deverminasion of some Nicor employees who are commisied to providing esceptiona] service
ad value flor cnsromers, and fmproving the quality of life i our communites, as well as posting
soltd] fimanctal vesults for our shareholders.

Nicor Inc. (NYSE:GAS)is a holding company and a
member of the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index. Its
principal businesses are Nicor Gas, one of the nation’s
largest natural gas distribution companies, and Tropical
Shipping, a containerized shipping business serving
the Caribbean region. Nicor also owns or has equity

interests in several energy-related businesses.

H d.ll iild Ll

Values Statemant
* Nicor empioyees work to deliver the best, most cost-effective service to our customers.
* We treat our customers with the same dignity and respect that we expect from one another.

* We take personal responsibility for what we do, recognizing that individual efforts have an impact on
our company’s success.

* Ye strive tc treat each other fairly and be responsive to each other's needs.

* We are committed to working tcgether to achieve shared goals.




Selected Financiai Data

(dollars in millions, except per share data) 2003 2002 2001 2000 - 1999
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change ... $ 109.8 $ 128.0 $ 1221 $ 358 $ 116.3
Netincome ... .......... ... .. . ... . ... ... 105.3 128.0 1221 35.8 1163 M
Basic earnings percommonshare .
Before cumulative effect of accounting change . ........... $ 2.49 $ 290 $ 270 $ 77 $ 246 o
Basic earnings pershare ........... ... oo 2.39 2.90 2.70 77 2.46
Diluted earnings per common share "
Before cumulative effect of accounting change ............ $ 248 $ 288 $ 268 $ 77 $ 245
Diluted earnings pershare ... 2.38 2.88 2.69 77 2.45
“““““““ Dividends declared per commonshare ................. $ 1.86 $ 1.84 $ 1.76 $ 1.66 $ 156
Operating revenues [~
Gas distribution ... ... . $2,351.6 $1,590.7 $2,090.8 $1,880.3 $1,326.0 .
ShIPPING e 272.2 266.0 230.3 248.3 229.9 [
Other energy ventures ... ...t 96.5 56.9 43.7 30.7 14.6
Corporate and eliminations ........ ... o oo (57.6) (16.2) 1.5 - -

$2,662.7 $1,897.4 $2,366.3 $2,159.3 $1,670.5 _
Operating income (loss) -

e Gas distribution ... o $ 166.2 $ 207.0 $ 194.4 $ 557 $ 188.2 -

B SRIDPING e ve e e 29,7 21.2 19.1 26.2 292.5 n
Other energy ventures ...t i i 7.9 6.4 6.8 6.7 5.4 =

““““ Corporate and eliminations ........cociiviiiinerinii ... (7.4) 8.1 a.n (3.0) (3.5) -

$ 1894 $ 226.5 $ 219.2 $ 856 $ 212.6

: Total @55€18® . 1o\t $3,797.2 $3,5624.4 $3,182.2 $3,460.6 $2,981.4 -
- Capitalization )

Long-term bonds and notes, net of current maturities ... . ... $ 4951 $ 396.2 $ 446.4 $ 3471 $ 436.1 .

— Mandatorily redeemable preferred stock ................... 1.8 4.3 6.1 6.4 6.3 —
B COMMON GUITY v v vt ettt e 754.6 728.4 704.2 705.2 796.1 i

$1,251.5 $1,128.9 $1,186.7 $1,058.7 $1,238.56

Other selected data
Market price per common share

HIgh o $ 39.30 $ 49.00 $ 42.38 $ 43.88 $ 4294

oW 23.70 18.09 34.00 29.38 31.19

Cl0SE o 34.04 34.03 41.64 43.19 32.50
Dividend yield ... o 5.5% 5.4% 4.2% 3.8% 4.8%
Dividend payoutratio .............. oo 78% 64% 65% 216% 64% =
Total return to shareholders . ... ..o 5.8% (14.1)% 8% 39.1% (19.7%
Price/earnings ratio ........... ..o o s 14.3 11.8 15.56 56.1 13.3
Book value pershare ................ oo o $ 17.13 $ 16.55 $ 15.86 $ 156.50 $ 16.98
Return on average common equity ........................ 14.2% 17.8% 17.56% 4.7% 14.8%
Average shares of common stock outstanding (millions) ... .. 44.0 441 451 46.2 47.3 t
Average daily trading volume (shares) ..................... 364,900 280,200 143,200 137,900 94,100 o
Common shareholders of record oo oo, 25,100 26,200 27,700 29,400 31,900 :
EMPIOYEES o\ vt 3,500 3,500 3,400 3,300 3,400

(a) Reflects the reclassification of estimated removal cost obligation from accumulated depreciation to non-current liabilities in the gas distribution segment.
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Fellow Shareholders:

In my letter to you a year ago 1 explained my concerns regard-
ing ongoing weak economic conditions, how the economy

might impact our gas distribution and shipping businesses,

and the fact that certain operating and maintenance costs
Thomas L. Fisher were increasing. Unfortunately, events have shown those
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer concerns to be warranted. Wholesale natural gas prices also

increased significantly in 2003 from 2002 levels and posed
additional challenges.

2003 Resuits

Still, we posted diluted earnings per common share of $2.38
in 2003, compared with $2.88 per share in 2002. Both 2003
and 2002 included impacts of mercury-related items and
amounts (write-downs and recoveries) related to our retail
energy marketing joint venture which we elected to shut-
down. In addition, 2003 included a 10-cent-per-share charge
to reflect the adoption of a required accounting change for
activities in our wholesale natural gas marketing business.
Absent these items, which increased earnings per share by
27 cents in 2003 and 26 cents in the prior year, 2003 earnings
per common share would have been $2.11 compared with

$2.62 per share in 2002.

The principal reason for the decline in 2003 earnings was
lower operating results at our primary business, Nicor Gas.
The company’s operating and maintenance costs increased

significantly — much of that increase can be attributed to

el Nicor Inc. 2 2003 Annual Report




national issues: lower pension returns, and higher insurance
and health care costs. In addition, the negative effects of a

slow economy and higher wholesale natural gas prices led to
a decline in industrial gas deliveries, greater bad debt expense,

and increased company gas usage costs.

Clearly we are not satisfied with our financial results and we
are focused on taking actions to improve our performance.
Our core businesses — Nicor Gas and Tropical Shipping —
provide essential services to the markets they serve. However,
we comtinue to operate in an environment of volatile natural
gas prices and rising operating costs. Due to these factors, it
is difficult to predict precisely when we will see a meaningful
tmprovement in our business operations and, as a result, we
do not expect significant near-term improvement in our

financial results.

Over the past year we have made steady progress in establishing
a more comprehensive approach to managing risk throughout
our organization and improving companywide processes,
policies and procedures to ensure quality customer service,
operational effectiveness, and timely and accurate financial
reporting. We also continue to work diligently toward a resolu-
tion of our current regulatory and governmental uncertainties.
We expect closure of the Illinois Commerce Commission’s
review of the Performance-Based Rate plan in the second

half of 2004.

Pride, Spirit and Determination

I am proud of the efforts of our employees and how they
have responded to the challenges we have faced. I believe
the theme for this year’s annual report, “Pride, Spirit and
Determination,” captures the essence of our company and
the people who play a critical role in executing our business
strategies, providing our customers with excellent service and
improving the communities where we do business. Our cus-
tomers can depend on us to deliver value and reliability, and
can also see Nicor employees volunteering their time and tal-
ents to support community activities. You'll meet several

of our exceptional team members in the pages that follow.

They are representative of a much larger number of Nicor

people who are dedicated to making our company a reliable and
respected provider of energy-related products and services in

the Midwest, and shipping services in the Caribbean region.

Solid Foundation
In addition to our talented workforce, we also have several

other positive factors on which to build as we go forward:

— Our financial position remains strong, OQur bonds continue

to be highly rated and we expect the company to generate

strong cash flows. Standard & Poor’s rates Nicor Gas’ long-term
debt “AA” which is the highest rating currently given in the gas
distribution industry. We also have substantive lines of credit
to accommodate short-term borrowing needs connected with

the purchase of high-cost natural gas.

— We are fortunate to have strategic locations and assets.
Nicor Gas’ service territory is considered one of the best in
the gas distribution industry because of its diverse economy,
customer growth, storage capabilities and proximity to
pipeline supplies. Tn addition to these key attributes, Nicor Gas
has over 2 million natural gas customers. Tropical Shipping
continues to upgrade its fleet of vessels and equipment to
improve its competitiveness in the Caribbean region and,
in recent years, the company has made a number of niche
acquisitions. Tropical Shipping also has a strong customer
base and maintains leading market shares in the majority of

the 25 ports it serves.

— We have been particularly encouraged with the progress
of our energy-related services companies. These companies
provide a broad range of offerings that include a natural gas
service line protection product; heating, ventilation and air
conditioning (HVAC) equipment repair, maintenance and
replacement services; and natural gas price and weather pro-
tection products that are offered to Nicor Gas customers.
Our energy-related services customer base has grown rapidly.

and we currently have more than 450,000 customer contracts.

— Our dividend has been an important basis for owning

Nicor stock, and we are committed to paying a stable and

Nicor Inc. 3 2003 Annual Report




solid dividend going forward. Our corporate efforts and the
hard work of many individual investors to support new tax
legislation in 2003 paid off as well, resulting in a lower tax
rate for dividend payments that further enhances the net

return on your Nicor investment.

— We have also continued to strengthen our management
team, combining “home grown” talent with some key external
appointments. In 2003, Russ Strobel was promoted to the
position of President and Chief Executive Officer of Nicor
Gas, and he was appointed to Nicor’s Board of Directors
earlier this year. Russ has been with Nicor for three years and
during that time his leadership, vision and sound business
judgment have been instrumental in the development and
execution of our business strategies. In addition, Richard
Hawley was appointed Chief Financial Officer of Nicor
and Nicor Gas late in 2003. Rick brings extensive experi-
ence and a successful background in public accounting and
the utility industry, and we look forward to benefiting from

his insight and direction as we move forward.

Strategic Direction

Our focus remains on our long-term objectives: grow earnings
over time, pay a solid dividend and maintain healthy returns
on equity. To achieve these objectives our key strategies will
be to grow our core businesses, optimize our storage and
transmission assets, expand our other energy-related busi-
nesses and build on our financial strength. Any investment
opportunities that we consider will fit within these strategic
parameters, and we are careful to make certain that these
strategies are executed with the creation of shareholder

value always in mind.

As a primary source of our traditional earnings, Nicor Gas’
success is fundamental to our overall success, and it provides a
strong foundation upon which to build. Residential construc-
tion in our service territory remains brisk, and we continue
to add approximately 30,000 customers each year. We
believe the attributes of Nicor Gas — a large and diverse
customer base, strategic location on the Midwest pipeline

grid and significant storage capabilities, combined with our

strong brand — will continue to create opportunities for us to
provide supply-related services and to introduce new products

and services throughout the energy value chain.

Rebuilding earnings remains a priority for this core business;
however, as 1 stated earlier, the cost of doing business continues
to rise. Furthermore, much of our demand loss has been in
natural gas-sensitive industries such as chemicals, and may
be permanent or, at a minimum, slow to recover. Therefore,
continuing to control our costs and efficiently manage our
operations will remain high priorities. Like all regulated utilities,
we will continue to evaluate the impact of these factors and
properly assess the appropriateness of seeking rate relief. The
company last received a rate increase in 1996, the first such

rate increase since 1982,

Our second largest business, Tropical Shipping, has ecarned

a reputation for providing dependable, on-time service and
has a history of producing high margins relative to others

in its industry. Results of this business will fluctuate year to
year depending on the strength of the U.S. and Caribbean
economies, and the resulting impact on tourism. Weak
economic times have produced opportunities for Tropical
Shipping to make a number of strategic acquisitions under
favorable terms as other carriers find it difficult to compete.
Growing our shipping business over the long term will require
us to capitalize on any economic recovery, continue to improve
productivity and operating efficiencies, enhance service offer-
ings, and expand into new markets through acquisitions

and/or partnerships.

Optimizing the use of cur storage and transmission assets

is another key element to improving earnings over the long
term. High natural gas prices and increased price volatility
may continue for some time. These market conditions can
create a greater need for services we currently provide
through the Chicago Hub and our wholesale natural gas
marketing business, Nicor Enerchange. These services
include balancing, price mitigation and aggregation services
for electric power generators, natural gas suppliers and other

gas distribution companies. In addition, we also believe
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midstream pipeline and storage development is a good
strategic fit for Nicor. These projects offer low-risk, regulated
rates of return, and we have already had some success in this
area with the startup of the Horizon Pipeline in 2002, We
will continue to seek out these types of opportunities to
expand our regulated asset base, potentially beyond our

utility territory.

Our retail energy-related services businesses continue to
grow by increasing market share in Nicor Gas’ service
territory and by introducing new products and services.
Meeting a broad range of energy needs, Nicor is becoming

a premier provider of energy services in Illinois’ residential
and commercial markets. Our successful ventures in this
area have been Nicor Services and Nicor Solutions, whose
ongoing earnings contributions are expected to show steady
growth. Achieving our objectives will require a constant focus
on increasing our market share, enhancing our product and

service offerings, and establishing regional market coverage.

At Nicor, one thing that has remained constant over the
years is the fact that the company’s cash flow is strong. Our
capital structure also continues to be solid, averaging approx-

imately 60 percent equity and 40 percent long-term debt.

Maintaining our financial strength provides us with flexibility

to take advantage of investment opportunities in our existing
businesses, and allows us to consider other alternatives for

creating shareholder value.

Outiook

We expect modest improvement in 2004 earnings compared
with 2003 levels, absent any unusual items. Although this is a
challenging period for our businesses, we continue to execute
our business plan and remain focused on accomplishing our
long-term objectives. 1 am confident that the pride, spirit
and determination of our employees will enable us to meet
these challenges and to seize new opportunities that benefit
all of our stakeholders. By living our organizational values,
built on the premise of exceptional service, personal respon-
sibility, dignity, respect, and teamwork, we will work through

our uncertainties and succeed.

Nicor’s foundation, developed from our core businesses —
Nicor Gas and Tropical Shipping — remains a stable base
upon which to build. Furthermore, our other energy-related
businesses are well positioned to strengthen their presence

in the markets they serve.

I also would like to thank you, our shareholders, for your
continued support. Our ability to increase the value of your
investment is your ultimate measure of our success, and we are
working hard to deliver results. I look forward to reporting to

you on our progress.

Thomas L. Fisher
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

February 17, 2004
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Operations Review

Nicor is a solid company built on the foundation of its two core businesses ~ Nicor Gas, one of the
nation’s largest gas distribution companies, and Tropical Shipping, a leading transporter of containerized
freight in the Caribbean region. In addition to these businesses, we will continue to develop other energy-
related ventures that complement our core businesses and enhance the value of the services we offer
our customers and the returns we generate for our shareholders. The Chicago Hub, Nicor Enerchange,
Horizon Pipeline, Nicor Services and Nicor Solutions are examples of these businesses. Nicor’s financial
strength provides flexibility to take advantage of new investment opportunities and to consider other

alternatives to create value for shareholders.

GAS DISTRIBUTION
Nicor Gas historically represents approximately It is very important that natural gas service installations at our

C o new residential communities are done in a quality manner and
85 percent of Nicor’s operating income. The ] o i ; -
. . on a timely basis. Nicor Gas did an excellent job providing

company has over 2 million customers in L |
llinod udi ) natural gas service into our recently completed Clublands ;

northern Illinois ~ excluding the city of project in Joliet. We depend on Nicor Gas to work with us to |

Chicago — and has a reputation for providing

achieve our desired resulis - providing unrivaled quality and
natural gas at low rates and safe, reliable service. customer service in everything that we do” ;

Nicor Gas serves one of the best markets for — Mark Voightmann, Land Development Superintendent, Neumann Homes
natural gas in the country because of the region’s
diverse mix of industries and high demand for space heating among residential and commercial customers.

In addition to an excellent service territory, Nicor Gas has significant underground storage assets and is
strategically located on the Midwest natural gas pipeline grid with access to eight interstate pipelines. The com-
pany’s strategic location is an important advantage since it is able to procure competitively priced natural gas
supplies from a number of gas producing regions in the United States and Canada. Nicor Gas’ storage capabili-

ties and pipeline connections have also been a means for revenue-generating

NICOR GAS CUSTOMERS - AT YEAR-END
(in thousands)

activides like the Chicago Hub and off-system storage and transmission services,

o |2077

5

1.84®

=
@
@

2,048 and provide an excellent platform for new energy-related opportunities.
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Nicor Gas’ traditional growth has come from customer additions. The
company added over 31,000 customers in 2003 and has added over 300,000
customers in the past 10 years. The suburbs of Chicago continue to become
more significant business centers, attracting further residential, commercial
and industrial growth.

‘Wholesale natural gas prices can have a material impact on Nicor Gas’

business. High costs for natural gas experienced throughout 2003 negatively

98

00

01 02 03 affected the company’s financial results and operations. During the year, Nicor
Gas’ weighted averagé cost of gas — the commodity cost that the company
passes on to its customers without markup — was $6.24 per Mcf, up from $3.67 per Mcf in 2002. These
higher costs are a result of a nationally tight supply/demand balance, and contributed to higher bad debt
expense, lower gas deliveries to industrial customers, and increased gas usage costs for the company.

As a result of the higher natural gas prices, the company sponsored a number of energy fairs to discuss
methods to help customers manage higher bills, including signing up for the company’s budget payment
plan, improving energy efficiency; and evaluating financial assistance programs. In addition, through
publications, bill inserts, and its Web site, Nicor Gas made available important information that addressed

customer concerns about high natural gas costs.

Nicor Inc. 6 2003 Annual Report




and comme

areas ]Ffw n@ml iﬂg coms tm@ti@_a lL@_n.@ pri 1 € an (i d@@ﬂn@q@q@n to h H is f 5 is @J also exem ﬁi ed
by his ﬂOiﬁlg’xtG_n d ¢h

W
F or his Tfhf’ﬂ@ giral 11101@11 @,

Nicor Inc. 7 2003 Annual Report




e S

i

Nicor Inc. 8 2003 Annual Report




e Outlook

Nicor Gas is operating in a difficult business environment, and high and volatile natural gas prices are

creating added challenges. Higher operating costs, especially for depreciation and increased labor and

~‘f compliance-related expenses are expected to result in lower earnings for this business segment in 2004.

= We will increase our ongoing efforts to manage costs, while concentrating on actions that improve business
processes and customer satisfaction. Nicor Gas will continue to benefit from the customer growth occurring
in its service territory, while the integrated nature of our storage and supply assets should afford profitable

i opportunities to provide supply-related services through operations such as the Chicago Hub.

SHIPPING

Tropical Shipping is one of the largest carriers of containerized TROPICAL SHIPPING TEUs SHIPPED
. . . . . . (in thousands)
freight in the Caribbean region, and a leading carrier of U.S. 7

177

Eoe

&5

and Canadian exports from the East Coast to the Caribbean. 89
Nicor acquired Tropical Shipping in 1982, and over the years
the company has continued to expand and make meaningful
= contributions to earnings and cash flow. The company also has
a history of producing high operating margins relative to its

industry peers.

Tropical Shipping serves 25 ports, including those in the

= Virgin Islands, Bahamas, Cayman Islands, Eastern Caribbean, = P = = ==
and the Dominican Republic. Tropical Shipping currently
- operates a fleet of 15 vessels, 10 of which the company owns, and utilizes equipment that is well suited
- to the markets it serves. Tropical Shipping’s reputation for dependable, on-time service, and its ability to
establish close and long-lasting relationships with customers, has helped the company develop strong
market positions in the majority of the ports it serves.
The Caribbean shipping business is cyclical, and results can and do fluctuate from year to year
: depending on tourism and the strength of the U.S. and Caribbean economies. In addition, service parity
and ongoing price competition continue to pressure results. Although operating income levels remain
= below the company’s best years in the late 1990s, over the past two years Tropical Shipping has posted
- improved financial results and increased volumes shipped. Difficult economic conditions historically have
produced opportunities for Tropical, as other carriers

“As an owner/operator of several McDonald's restaurants in in the market have found it difficult to compete. In the
the Bahamas, the continued success of my business is due
in part to the strategic partnership between DanBrad (d/b/a
McDonald's) and Tropical Shipping. Tropical continually
- stands behind its commitment to deliver on-time and reliable
-] service, a critical component in the food service industry. It market through a subsequent acquisition.

is gratifying to work with a team of caring professionals who

past few years, the company acquired a Canadian-based
container transportation business, as well as initiated a

new Guianas service and expanded its Eastern Caribbean

Outiook

strive to provide exceptional service and win-win solutions”
Tropical Shipping is well positioned to benefit from a

~ Ms. Erla Bethel, Owner, DanBrad (d/b/a McDonalds)
recovery in the U.S. and Caribbean economies, as tourism

and related construction projects return to their more typical patterns. We expect modest growth in shipping
volumes in 2004; however, higher compliance and security costs will be a challenge and we anticipate financial
results to be slightly higher than 2003 results. Tropical Shipping will remain focused on providing superior

q customer service, enhancing operational excellence, growing its business in existing ports, expanding to new

destinations and looking for niche acquisition opportunities.

Nicor Inc. 8 2008 Annual Report




- OTHER ENERGY VENTURES

; Nicor’s energy-related services businesses have a fundamental goal to develop and provide value-added retail

- products and services primarily to Nicor Gas custorners, Qur asset-backed energy ventures represent a num-

- ber of businesses that leverage Nicor Gas’ customer base, strategic location, storage and pipeline capabilities,
and expertise in natural gas-related markets. Although these operations currently make up a relatively small

= portion of Nicor’s assets and earnings, they are expected

: to be a growing portion of our portfolio. In 2003, these “In 2003, we determined it was finaily time to replace our
activities contributed nearly $8 million in operating income, inefficient heating and air conditioning system. From reading
ﬁ up 23 percent from 2002 levels. national news articles and literature from Nicor Gas, we

e learned that natural gas prices were increasing and obtained
3 Energy-Reiated Services other information that helped us make an informed decision.

We contacted D.M. Dykstra {a Nicor Services company) and
are very pleased with our new system. The installers took time
to address all of our questions and our concerns, and although
the replacement was more costly than a repair, we feel they

Nicor Services provides a number of non-commodity retail
energy-related products and services including a gas service
line protection product; HVAC equipment repair, mainte-

11

provided a solution to a problem and not just a band-aig!
The company’s offermgs include primarily products and -~ Frank and Barbara Oswald, Homeowners, and Nicor Gas and Nicor Services customers

services to help prevent and mitigate unexpected household

nance and replacement; and home appliance repair services.

repairs involving inside gas piping, furnaces, water heaters, air conditioners, home office equipment and most
home appliances.

Nicor Solutions offers natural gas price and weather protection products that add certainty to a customer’s
gas bill over a 12-month period — regardless of changing natural gas prices or the weather. High natural
] gas prices and price volatility continue to support demand for these products, which enable customers to

A have greater controf over their natural gas bills,

Asset-Backed Ventures

g The Chicago Hub operates within our utility and provides interruptible natural gas parking, balancing and

= wheeling services to marketers and interstate pipeline shippers moving natural gas to and through the
Midwest. The Hub also offers firm off-system storage and

AVERAGE COST OF GAS PER MCF SOLD - transmission services. These opportunities capitalize on

NICOR GAS _ , . . . _
3 Nicor Gas’ strategic location, diverse supply portfolio and

3)

o2

,
%
[l
59
5

storage capabilities.

Nicor Enerchange is engaged in wholesale marketing of natural

gas supply services to interstate pipelines, gas distribution

companies, power generators, and natural gas marketers and

brokers in the Midwest. By bundling commedity with natural

- gas transportation and storage, Enerchange customizes services
that provide significant added value to customers. The company

also administers the Chicago Hub and manages Nicor Solution’s

v po po po po product risks.

b Horizon Pipeline is a 74-mile, 36-inch pipeline that runs
from Joliet, Illinois north to a point near the Wisconsin border. It is a 50/50 joint venture between Nicor
and Natural Gas Pipeline Company of America, a subsidiary of Kinder Morgan, Inc. The pipeline has
strategic extension and expansion potential to meet natural gas needs in the region. Horizon Pipeline is
located within key growth sections of northern Illinois, which provides a competitive advantage over

other pipeline alternatives.
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Cutlook

Our other energy ventures are expected to be key contributors to Nicor’s long-term success, and we anticipate
overall earnings growth from these activities. Growth in our asset-backed ventures will come from our continued
focus on identifying and developing opportunities related to our extensive gas storage and transportation
network, strategic Jocation on the Midwest supply grid and the changing energy environment. Future plans
in the energy-related services area are focusing on increasing market share for our existing products and

services, developing new products and services over time, and establishing regional market coverage.

FINANCIAL STRENGTH

Nicor's financial position remains one of the strongest in DIVIDENDS DECLARED

the gas distribution industry. We have strong financial ratios, {per common share)

which have helped preserve our high-quality debt ratings. This PRy

in turn has allowed us access to low-cost sources of capital, to

the benefit of our customers and shareholders. Our primary
businesses are mature and are expected to generate solid cash
flows and healthy returns on equity, further supporting Nicor’s
financial underpinnings and strategic initiatives. Our share-
holders also benefit from the company’s financial strength

through our solid dividend and we are proud of our record

of 50 years of uninterrupted dividend payments. 5 00 o1 02 03

COMMUNITY SERVICE

Year after year, through their volunteer efforts and monetary contributions, Nicor and its employees have pro-

vided assistance to the communities where the company does business. These efforts have supported numerous

programs and organizations including the United Way and its many local agencies. With their spirit of caring

for others, Nicor people are improving our communities in many ways. Their volunteer efforts include helping
at food pantries, coaching youth athletics,

@ H M .
To be successful, our organization depends heavily on cleaning rivers and working to improve sites

monetary contributions and volunteered talents. Words for many worthy organizations

don’t begin t it iati h . ) .
on't begin to express our gratitude and appreciation to the Nicor also helps students realize their

Nicor crew who did volunteer work at our facility. Your people . L
, . ) educational aspirations through support
couldn't have been more efficient and pleasant to work with.

L . » L of “Dollars for Scholars” — a network of
Nicor's commitment to local communities and charities is

very impressive. community-based, volunteer-operated
- Susan Martino, Chief Executive Officer, Adult & Child Rehab Center foundations that raise scholarsh1p funds to

support local students in their pursuit of
higher education. Since 1997, Nicor has helped establish 155 scholarship foundations in Hllinois and offered
financial assistance to more than 900 students. This program will eventually expand the college scholarship

capacity in Illinois by about $4.5 million.

NICOR PEOPLE

Nicor’s team of employees live by a simple set of values — to deliver the best, most cost-effective service to our
customers: to treat our customers and each other with dignity and respect; to always take personal responsibility:
to treat each other fairly; and to work together to achieve shared goals. We also have a strong Code of Ethics,
which every employee acknowledges and lives by, and an ongoing commitment to diversity. This is our culture and it
makes Nicor a great place to work. We strive to provide an environment where our employees can feel good about
their company and their individual contributions to the team’s success. In addition, we adhere to, and in many

cases have proactively developed processes for compliance with, new regulatory corporate governance standards.
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Company Overview

PERCENTAGE OF 2003 OPERATING INCOME
(excludes Corporate and eliminations)

GAS DISTRIBUTION 84% /z:ww:wuwwwmmwﬂwmmmwwmw&w

SHIPPING 12% =
Tt AR

OTHER ENERGY VENTURES 4%

Nicor Gas delivers natural gas to more than 2 million customers
in a service territory that encompasses most of the northern
third of Hlinots, excluding the city of Chicago. The comnany has
a large and diverse customer base, distribution rates that are
historically low compared with other areas of the United States,
an extensive storage and fransmission system, and an advanta-
geous location on the nation’s interstate natural gas pipeline
grid. These attributes distinguish Nicor Gas from other natural
gas distributors. The company also provides an excellent plat-
form for other energy-related opportunities, like the Chicago
Hub, as the energy industry evolves in the years ahead.

At
With a fleet of 10 owned and five chartered vessels, Tropical
Shipping is one of the largest carriers of containerized cargo

in the Caribbean region. The company has a reputation for
providing quality, on-time service and has established a leading
market share in many of the ports it serves. Tropical Shipping
serves 25 poris and provides a variety of services, including:
dry and refrigerated full load, and less-than-centainer-lcad
shipments; consolidation, import and cargo transfer services;
and cargo insurance.

Other energy ventures include several subsidiaries, affiliates

and other initiatives that buiid on Nicor's expertise in the energy
industry and on the company's financial strength. These ventures
include retail energy-related products and services (Nicor Services
and Nicor Solutions), natural gas supply-related services (Nicor
Enerchange), pipeline projects {(Horizon Pipeline) and other
energy-related activities.
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INTERSTATE PIPELINE TRANSPORTERS
Natural Gas Pipeline Company of America
Northern Natural Gas Company
Midwestern Gas Transmission Company
Panhandle Eastern Pipe Line Company
ANR Pipetine Company

Northern Border Pipeline Company
Alliance Pipeline

Horizon Pipelineg
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KEY MARKETS SERVED

* Bahamas + St. Croix

« Barbados + St. Maarten
« Cayman Islands « St. Thomas
« Dominican Republic * Tortola

* Puerto Rico « Trinidad

RETAIL ENERGY-RELATED PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

* Aeroseal® Duct Sealing/Duct Cleaning

* Fixed Bill/Seasonal Fixed Bill

» Gas Line Repair Plan

» HVAC Equipment, Warranty Protection and Services

NATURAL GAS SUPPLY-RELATED SERVICES
 Asset Optimization

= Balancing

* Loaning

* Parking

* Risk Management
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(industrial construction)
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President, Nicor Inc.;
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CAUTION CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This document includes certain forward-looking statements about
= the expectations of Nicor Inc., and its subsidiaries and affiliates.
e Although Nicor believes these statements are based on reasonable
= assumptions, actual results may vary materially from stated expec-
o tations. Such forward-looking statements may be identified by the
f_: use of forward-looking words or phrases such as “anticipate;
= “believe,” “expect,’ “intend,’ “may,’ “planned," “potential;’ “should;
— “will! “would;" “project; “estimate,’ or similar phrases. Actual results |
~ may differ materially from those indicated in the company's forward- "
- looking statemenis due to the direct or indirect effects of legal
e contingencies {including litigation) and the resolution of those
B issues, including the effects of an lllinois Commerce Commission
=z review, and undue reliance should not be placed on such state-
= ments. Other factors that could cause materially different results
;‘ include, but are not limited to, weather conditions; natural gas
:: and other fuel prices; fair value accounting adjustments; health
4 care costs; insurance costs; legal costs; borrowing needs;
“‘; interest rates; credit conditions; economic and market conditions;
E Caribbean tourism; energy conservation; legislative and regutatory
E actions; tax rulings or audit results; asset sales; significant
3 unplanned capital needs; future mercury-related charges or
= credits; changes in accounting principles, methods, judgments
E or estimates; performance of major suppliers and contractors;
:j labor relations; and acts of terrorism. Readers are cautioned not to
3 place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which
3 speak only as of the date of this document. Nicor undertakes no
- obligation to publicly release any revision to these forward-looking
j statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of
4 this document. -
:
E
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INTRODUCTORY NOTE

This amendment to Nicor Inc.’s (Nicor) Annual Report on Form 10-K initially filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC) on February 20, 2004 is being filed to reflect the reclassification of
accrued future removal costs from accumulated depreciation to a noncurrent liability for periods prior to
2003. Nicor’s initial filing had classified only accrued future removal costs at December 31, 2003 as a
noncurrent liability. Subsequent to Nicor’s initial filing, new guidance was issued to the utility industry
indicating that accrued future removal costs for all periods presented should be reclassified to noncurrent
liabilities. These reclassifications had no impact on the previously reported common equity or results of
operations of Nicor. In addition, subsequent to Nicor’s initial filing, the intervenors in the PBR
proceeding, discussed beginning on pages 27 and 55, filed their rebuttal testimony. Nicor has updated its
Form 10-K to reflect such testimony.
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PART I

Item 1. Business

Nicor Inc. (Nicor), incorporated in 1976, is a holding company. Its principal subsidiaries are Northern
Illinois Gas Company (doing business as Nicor Gas Company (Nicor Gas)), one of the nation’s largest
distributors of natural gas, and Tropical Shipping, a leading transporter of containerized freight in the
Bahamas and the Caribbean region. Gas distribution is Nicor’s primary business, typically representing
about &5 percent of consolidated operating income and about 90 percent of consolidated assets. Nicor
also owns several energy-related ventures, including Nicor Services and Nicor Solutions, providing
energy-related products and services for retail markets, and Nicor Enerchange, a wholesale natural gas
marketing company. As a consolidated group, Nicor had approximately 3,500 employees at year-end
2003.

Summeary financial information of Nicor’s major business segments is included in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 13 Business Segment and Geographic Information. The
following sections describe Nicor’s larger businesses. Certain terms used herein are defined in the
glossary on page ii.

GAS DISTRIBUTION

General

Nicor Gas, a regulated natural gas distribution utility, serves over two million customers in a service
territory that encompasses most of the northern third of Illinois, excluding the city of Chicago. The
company’s service territory is diverse and its customer base has grown steadily over the years, providing
the company with a well-balanced mix of residential, commercial and industrial customers. Residential
customers typically account for approximately 45 to 50 percent of natural gas deliveries, while
commercial and industrial customers each typically account for about 25 to 30 percent. See Gas
Distribution Statistics on page 15 for operating revenues, deliveries and number of customers by customer
classification. Nicor Gas had approximately 2,300 employees at year-end 2003.

Nicor Gas maintains franchise agreements with most of the communities it serves, allowing it to
construct, operate and maintain distribution facilities in those communities. Franchise agreement terms
range up to 50 years. Currently, about 10 percent of the agreements will expire within five years.

Nicor Gas’ gas costs are passed directly through to customers without markup, subject to Iilinois
Commerce Commission (ICC) review. Accordingly, changes in gas costs impact revenues but have no
direct impact on operating income. Nicor Gas’ operating income is derived primarily from the delivery
rather than the sale of natural gas to customers.

Customers have the option of purchasing their own gas supplies, with delivery of the gas by Nicor Gas.
The larger of these transportation customers also have options that include the use of Nicor Gas’ storage
system and the ability to choose varying supply backup levels. The choice of transportation service as
compared to gas sales service results in less revenue for Nicor Gas but has no impact on net operating

results.

Nicor Gas also has nontraditional gas supply-related ventures, including the Chicago Hub, which provides
natural gas storage and transmission-related services to marketers and other gas distribution companies.
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Item 1. Business (continued)

Sources of Natural Gas Supply

Nicor Gas purchases natural gas supplies in the open market by contracting directly with producers and
marketers. Pipeline transportation and purchased storage services are regulated by the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (FERC). When contracted services are temporarily not needed, Nicor Gas may
release the services in the secondary market under FERC-mandated capacity release provisions, with
proceeds reducing the company’s cost of gas charged to customers.

Peak-use requirements are met through utilization of company-owned storage facilities, pipeline
transportation capacity, purchased storage services and other supply sources, arranged by either Nicor
Gas or its transportation customers. Nicor Gas has been able to obtain sufficient supplies of natural gas to
meet customer requirements. The company believes natural gas supply and pipeline capacity will be
sufficiently available to meet market demands in the foreseeable future.

Natural gas supply. Nicor Gas maintains a diversified portfolio of natural gas supply contracts. Supply
contracts are diversified by supplier, producing region, quantity and avaiiable transportation. Contract
pricing is generally tied to published price indices so as to approximate current market prices, although at
times the company may fix the price of a portion of its supply portfolio. These supply contracts also
generally provide for the payment of fixed demand charges to ensure the availability of supplies on any
given day and are typically negotiated annually.

The company also purchases gas supplies on the spot market to fulfill its supply requirements or to take
advantage of favorable short-term pricing. Spot gas purchases accounted for about one-half of the
company’s total gas purchases in the last three years.

As noted previously, transportation customers purchase their own gas suppiies. About one-half of the gas
that the company delivers is purchased by transportation customers directly from producers and marketers
rather than from the company.

Pipeline transportation. Nicor Gas is directly connected to eight interstate pipelines, providing access
to most of the major natural gas producing regions in North America. The company’s primary
transportation contracts are with Natural Gas Pipeline Company of America (NGPL), Northern Natural
Gas Company (NNG), Tennessee Gas Pipeline Company (TGPL), Midwestern Gas Transmission
Company (MGT) and ANR Pipeline (ANR). In 2003, new transportation contracts with NGPL, TGPL
and MGT became effective, with terms generally into 2006. The contract with NNG will expire in 2004
and Nicor Gas is negotiating a renewal of this agreement. The contract with ANR will also expire in
2004 and Nicor Gas expects to negotiate a renewal. In 2002, Nicor Gas also began receiving service
under a 10-year transportation agreement with Horizon Pipeline, a 50/50 joint venture between Nicor and
NGPL.

Storage. Nicor Gas owns and operates seven underground natural gas storage facilities. This storage
system is one of the largest in the gas distribution industry. With about 140 Bcf of annual storage
capacity, the system is designed to meet about 55 percent of the company’s estimated peak-day deliveries
and approximately 30 percent of its normal winter deliveries. In addition to company-owned facilities,
Nicor Gas has about 40 Bcf of purchased storage services under contracts with NGPL that expire in 2006
and 2007. Storage provides supply flexibility, improves the reliability of deliveries and can mitigate the
risk associated with seasonal price movements.
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Item 1. Business (continued)

Competition/Demand

Nicor Gas is the largest natural gas distributor in [llinois. Substantially all single-family homes in Nicor
Gas’ service territory are heated with natural gas. In the commercial and industrial markets, the
company’s natural gas services compete with other forms of energy, such as electricity, coal, propane and
oil, based on such factors as price, service, reliability and environmental impact. Other significant factors
that impact demand for natural gas include weather and economic conditions.

Natural gas deliveries are temperature-sensitive and seasonal since about one-half of all deliveries are
used for space heating. Typically, about 70 percent of deliveries and revenues occur from October
through March. Fluctuations in weather have the potential to significantly impact year-to-year
comparisons of operating income and cash flow.

In 2001, 2002 and the first quarter of 2003, Nicor Gas purchased earnings protection against the impact of
significantly warmer-than-normal or colder-than-normal weather. No agreement is in effect for the
2003/2004 heating season due to a partial financial offset within the consolidated Nicor group, as further
described in Management’s Discussion and Analysis - Weather on page 22.

Nicor Gas’ large residential customer base provides for a relatively stable level of natural gas deliveries
during weak economic conditions. The company’s industrial and commercial customer base is well
diversified, lessening the impact of industry-specific economic swings.

During periods of high natural gas prices, deliveries of natural gas can be negatively affected by
conservation and the use of alternative energy sources. While natural gas prices have fluctuated greatly
over the last several years, natural gas has traditionally maintained a pricing advantage over electricity
and it is expected to maintain an advantage in the foreseeable future.

Additional information on competition and demand is presented in Management’s Discussion and
Analysis - Factors That May Affect Business Performance beginning on page 22.

Regulation

Nicor Gas is regulated by the ICC, which establishes the rules and regulations governing utility rates and
services in Illinois. Certain rates are updated monthly and designed to recover specific cost categories,
such as gas supply and environmental costs, subject to annual regulatory reviews. Base rates, on the other
hand, are designed to allow the company an opportunity to recover its other costs and to earn a fair return
for its investors. Nicor Gas has the option to seek ICC approval for base rate increases. Once started, a
rate relief proceeding generally takes about one year. Significant changes in the regulations applicable to
Nicor Gas or its affiliates, or the regulatory environment in general, could affect the performance of Nicor
Gas.

The cost of gas the company purchases for customers is recovered through a monthly gas supply charge,
which accounted for approximately 80 percent of a typical residential customer’s annual bill in the last
three years. As already noted, the company’s cost of gas is passed on to customers without markup,
subject to ICC review.
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Item L. Business (continued)

A performance-based rate (PBR) plan for natural gas costs was in effect from 2000 through 2002. Under
the PBR plan, Nicor Gas’ total gas supply costs were compared to a market-sensitive benchmark.
Savings and losses relative to the benchmark were determined annually and shared equally with sales
customers. The results of the PBR plan are currently under ICC review. Additional information on the
plan and the ICC review are presented in Management’s Discussion and Analysis - Contingencies -
Performance-Based Rate Plan beginning on page 27.

Properties

The gas distribution, transmission and storage system includes approximately 31,000 miles of steel,
plastic and cast iron main; approximately 1.9 million steel, plastic/aluminum composite, plastic and
copper services connecting the mains to customers’ premises; and seven underground storage fields.
Other properties include buildings, land, motor vehicles, meters, regulators, compressors, construction
equipment, tools, communication and computer equipment, software, and office equipment.

Most of the company’s distribution and transmission property, and underground storage fields are located
on property owned by others and used by the company through easements, permits or licenses. The
company owns most of the buildings housing its administrative offices and the land on which they sit.

Substantially all gas distribution properties are subject to the lien of the indenture securing Nicor Gas’
first mortgage bonds.

Additional information about Nicor Gas’ business is presented in Management’s Discussion and Analysis
- Gas Distribution beginning on page 22.

SHIPPING

Tropical Shipping is one of the largest containerized cargo carriers in the Bahamas and Caribbean, a
region characterized by modest market growth and intense competition. The company is a major carrier
of exports from the east coast of the United States and Canada to the Caribbean region. The company’s
shipments consist primarily of southbound cargo such as food, building materials and other necessities for
developers, manufacturers and residents in the Caribbean, as well as tourist-related shipments intended
for use in hotels and resorts, and on cruise ships. The balance of Tropical Shipping’s cargo consists of
northbound shipments of apparel and agricultural products, and interisland shipments. The company also
provides additional related services including inland transportation and cargo insurance. Tropical
Shipping’s financial results can be significantly affected by general economic conditions in the Umted
States, the Caribbean region and Canada.

At December 31, 2003, Tropical Shipping’s fleet consisted of 10 owned vessels and 5 chartered vessels
with a container capacity totaling approximately 5,100 TEUs. In addition to the vessels, the company
owns containers, container-handling equipment, chassis and other equipment. Real property, more than
half of which is leased, includes office buildings, cargo handling facilities and warehouses located in the
United States, Canada and some of the ports served.

Additional information about Tropical Shipping’s business is presented in Management’s Discussion and
Analysis - Shipping beginning on page 24.
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Item 1., Business (concluded)

OTHER ENERGY VENTURES

Nicor owns several energy-related ventures, including two companies marketing energy-related products
and services, and a wholesale natural gas marketing company. Nicor also has equity interests in several
joint ventures including a FERC-regulated natural gas pipeline. In 2003, the company substantially
liquidated its investment in a retail energy marketing joint venture.

Nicor Services and Nicor Solutions are wholly owned businesses that provide energy-related products and
services for retail markets, including residential and small commercial users. Nicor Services offers
products and services covering the sales, installation, maintenance, repair and improvement of heating, air
conditioning and related equipment, including natural gas piping inside homes, ductwork and other
equipment. Nicor Solutions offers its customers energy-related financial products, including utility-bill
management plans as well as natural gas price protection plans.

Nicor Enerchange is a wholly owned business that engages in wholesale marketing of natural gas supply
services primarily in the Midwest. Nicor Enerchange aiso administers the Nicor Gas Chicago Hub and
manages Nicor Solutions’ product risks.

During 2002, Horizon Pipeline, a 50-percent-owned joint venture with NGPL, put into operation a 74-
mile, 36-inch pipeline from Joliet, Illinois to near the Wisconsin/Iilinois border. Nicor Gas has contracted
for approximately 80 percent of Horizon Pipeline’s capacity under a 10-year agreement at rates that have
been accepted by FERC.

Nicor Energy is a 50-percent-owned retail energy marketing joint venture with Dynegy Marketing and
Trade. During 2003, Nicor Energy disposed of its customer contracts and ceased operations. For
information about Nicor Energy see the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 19
Contingencies - Nicor Energy.

AVATLABLE INFORMATION

Nicor files various reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). These reports include
the annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and
amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13 (a) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934. Nicor makes all of these reports available without charge to the public on the investor relations
section of its corporate Web site at www.nicor.com as soon as reasonably practicable after Nicor files
them with, or furnishes them to, the SEC.

Item 2. Properties

Information concerning Nicor and its major subsidiaries’ properties is included in Item 1, Business,
beginning on page 1, and is incorporated herein by reference. These properties are suitable, adequate and
utilized in the company’s operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

See the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 19 Contingencies, which are incorporated
herein by reference.

Ttem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.
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o Executive Officers of the Registrant

Z Name Age Current Position and Background

Thomas L. Fisher 59 Chairman, Nicor and Nicor Gas (since 1996); Chief
Executive Officer, Nicor (since 1995) and Nicor Gas
(1988-2003); and President, Nicor (1994-2002) and Nicor
Gas (1988-2002).

gl bb il

Russ M. Strobet 51 Chief Executive Officer, Nicor Gas (since 2003); President,
Nicor and Nicor Gas (since 2002); Executive Vice
President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary, Nicor
and Nicor Gas (2002); Senior Vice President, General
Counsel and Corporate Secretary, Nicor and Nicor Gas
(2000-2002); Partner, Altheimer & Gray, attorneys (2000);
and Partner, Jenner & Block, attorneys (1986-2000).

gt bk
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Kathleen L. Halloran 51 Executive Vice President and Chief Risk Officer, Nicor and
Nicor Gas (since 2003); Executive Vice President Finance
and Administration, Nicor and Nicor Gas (1999-2003}
Senior Vice President Administration, Nicor Gas (1998-
1999); and Senior Vice President Information Services,
Rates and Human Resources, Nicor Gas (1996-1998).

Richard L. Hawley 54 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer,
Nicor and Nicor Gas (since 2003); Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer, Puget Energy, Inc. (2000-2002)
and Puget Sound Energy, Inc. (1998-2002); and Partner,
Coopers & Lybrand (1984-1998).
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Claudia J. Colalillo 54 Senior Vice President Human Resources and Corporate
Communications, Nicor and Nicor Gas (since 2002); Vice

I President Human Resources, Nicor and Nicor Gas (1998-

2002). .

= Rocco J. D’ Alessandro 45 Senior Vice President Operations, Nicor Gas (since 2002);
Vice President Customer Service, Nicor Gas (1999-2002);
various managerial positions, Nicor Gas {1989-1999).

Daniel R. Dodge 50 Senior Vice President Diversified Ventures and Corporate
Planning, Nicor and Nicor Gas (since 2002); Vice President »
Business Development, Nicor and Nicor Gas (1598-2002).

George M. Behrens 48 Vice President Administration and Treasurer, Nicor and
Nicor Gas (since 2000); Vice President Administration,
Nicor and Nicor Gas (1999-2000); Vice President and
Controller, Nicor and Nicor Gas (1998-1999); and Vice
President Accounting, Nicor Gas (1996-1998).
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Executive Officers of the Registrant (concluded)

Name Age Current Position and Background

Paul C. Gracey, Jr. 44 Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary, Nicor and
Nicor Gas (since 2002); Vice President and General
Counsel, Midwest Generation, Chicago, independent power
producer (2000-2002); Vice President and General
Counsel, Edison Mission Energy Limited, London,
England, independent power producer (1993-2000).

Jeffrey L. Metz 50 Vice President and Controller, Nicor and Nicor Gas (since
2003); Assistant Vice President and Controller, Nicor and
Nicor Gas (2000-2003); various managerial positions,
Nicor and Nicor Gas (1987-2000).

PART

Ttem 5. Market for Registrant’s Commen Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Nicor common stock is listed on the New York and Chicago Stock Exchanges. At February 11, 2004,
there were approximately 25,000 common stockholders of record.

Stock price Dividends
Quarter High Low Declared
2003
First $ 3562 S 23.7¢ 8§ A6S
Second 39.30 27.05 465
Third 37.70 33.51 465
Fourth 36.62 32.03 465
2002
First $ 4620 $ 3955 § 46
Second 49.00 44.99 46
Third 47.83 18.09 46
Fourth 35.39 24.25 46

Under a common stock repurchase program, Nicor may purchase its common stock as market conditions
permit through open market transactions and to the extent cash flow is available after other cash needs
and investment opportunities. There were no purchases in 2003, and at December 31, 2003,
approximately $22 million remained authorized for the repurchase of common stock. However, Nicor did
have the foliowing common stock repurchases in the fourth quarter of 2003, primarily related to its
Automatic Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plans: 3,978 shares at an average price of $35.32
in October 2003; 53,164 shares at an average price of $34.46 in November 2003; and 6,304 shares at an
average price of $33.34 in December 2003.
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Ttem 6. Selected Financial Data

(in millions, except per share data)

Year ended December 31

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Operating revenues $ 2,662.7 $ 1,897.4 $ 2,366.3 $ 2,159.3 $ 1,570.5
Operating income $  189.4 $ 2265 $ 2192 $ 856 $ 2126
Income before cumulative effect of
accounting change § 109.8 $ 1280 $ 1221 $ 358 $ 1163
Net income § 1053 $ 1280 $ 1221 $ 358 $ 1163
Earnings per comimon share
Basic
Before cumulative effect of
accounting change § 249 $§ 290 $ 270 $ 77 $ 246
Basic earnings per share 2.39 2.90 2.70 77 2.46
Diluted
Before cumulative effect of
accounting change $ 248 $ 2288 $ 269 3 77 $ 245
Diluted earnings per share 2.38 2.88 2.69 77 2.45
Dividends declared per :
common share $ 186 3 184 $ 176 $ 166 $ 156
Property, plant and equipment
Gross $ 3,999.5 $ 3,872.8 $ 3,733.0 $ 3,588.9 $ 34935
Net 2,484.2 2,421.8 2,343.6 2,270.9 2,230.0
Total assets $ 3,797.2 $ 3,5244 $ 3,182.2 $ 3,460.6 $ 2,981.4
Capitalization
Long-term bonds and notes, net of
current maturities $ 495.1 $ 3962 $ 4464 $ 34741 $ 4361
Mandatorily redeemable preferred stock 1.8 43 6.1 6.4 63
Common equity 754.6 728.4 704.2 705.2 796.1

§ 1,251.5 $ 1,128.9 $ 1,156.7 $ 1,058.7 $ 1,238.5

For all years presented, property, plant and equipment, net and total assets reflect a change in classification of accrued :
future removal costs from accumulated depreciation to noncurrent liabilities. Accrued future removal costs approximated -
$670 million, $625 million, $575 million, $530 million and $485 million at December 31, 2003, 2002, 2001, 2000 and

1999, respectively. See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Note 3 - Cther Accounting Changes - Asset

retirement obligations for further information.
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Ttem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations

The purpose of this financial review is to explain changes in operating results and financial condition
from 2001 to 2003 and to discuss business trends and uncertainties that might affect Nicor Inc. (Nicor).
Certain terms used herein are defined in the glossary on page ii. The discussion is organized into five
sections — Summary, Results of Operations, Financial Condition and Liquidity, Critical Accounting
Estimates, and Factors That May Affect Business Performance.

SUMMARY

Nicor Inc. (Nicor) is a holding company with two principal subsidiaries - Nicor Gas and Tropical
Shipping. Nicor Gas is one of the nation’s largest natural gas distribution companies and typically
represents approximately 85 percent of Nicor’s operating income. Tropical Shipping is a containerized
shipping business serving the Bahamas and the Caribbean region that typically represents approximately
10 percent of Nicor’s operating income. Nicor also owns or has equity interests in several energy-related
businesses which have begun to provide a smail but growing amount of income.

Net income and diluted earnings per common share are presented below (in millions, except per share
data):

2003 2002 2001
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change § 1098 $§ 1280 § 1221
Net income 105.3 128.0 122.1
Earnings per average share of common stock:
Diluted — before cumulative effect of accounting change 2.48 2.88 2.69
Diluted — after cumulative effect of accounting change 2.38 2.88 2.69

Net income was lower in 2003 compared with 2002 due primarily to lower operating income from the gas
distribution segment, the cumulative effect of a change in accounting methods and an increase in the
effective income tax rate. These factors were partially offset by improved equity investment results due
primarily to cash received from a previously written off investment.

Net income was higher in 2002 compared with 2001 due primarily to increased insurance recoveries at
the company’s gas distribution segment related to its mercury inspection and repair program, partially
offset by other operating income reductions in the gas distribution segment. Lower net interest expense,
and operating income improvements in the shipping segment, also contributed to the 2002 improvement.

Nicor’s net income and earnings per share were positively impacted for all periods presented by the
recognition of partial recoveries from insurers and contractors and/or reserve reductions for Nicor Gas’
mercury inspection and repair program. The recognition of partial recoveries from insurers and
contractors and/or reserve reductions lowered pretax operating expenses by $17.8 million, $29.0 million
and $12.2 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. For details of Nicor Gas’ mercury inspection and
repair program, see the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 19 Contingencies -
Mercury Program.

Details of various financial and operating information by segment can be found on the pages that follow.
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3 Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
= and Results of Operations (continued)

Operating income. Operating income (loss) by major business segment is presented below (in millions):

2003 2002 - 2001 -
B Gas distribution $ 1662 $ 2070 $ 194.4
- Shipping 227 21.2 16.1
. Other energy ventures 7.9 6.4 6.8
§ Corporate and eliminations (7.4) 8.1 (L.1)

$ 1894 § 2265 § 2192

The following summarizes operating income comparisons by business segment:

- o Qas distribution operating income decreased $40.8 million in 2003 as compared to 2002 due

E primarily to increased operating and maintenance expenses ($20.5 million), lower Chicago Hub

b results ($8.1 million), higher depreciation ($5.9 million), and lower property sale gains ($3.7 million).
= Operating income also reflects $17.8 million of mercury-related insurance recoveries in 2003 as

- compared to $29 million of mercury-related insurance recoveries and reserve reductions in 2002. The
E impact of weather colder than the prior year was an increase in operating income of about $3 million.
These factors are discussed in more detail in the Results of Operations section which follows.

Gas distribution operating income increased $12.6 million in 2002 compared to 2001. The
improvement reflects $29.0 million of pretax mercury-related insurance recoveries and reserve
reductions in 2002 compared to $12.2 million in the prior year. Annual resuits were also impacted

E favorably by lower losses related to a performance-based rate (PBR) plan (§10.7 million), increased
natural gas deliveries unrelated to weather ($6.6 million) and colder weather (about $4 million).

= Results were negatively impacted by higher operating costs, inciuding lower pension credits ($14.1

e million), increased legal and accounting costs related primarily to the PBR plan review ($8.7 million),
higher depreciation ($5.2 million) and higher health care costs ($3.5 million).

B o  Shipping operating income for 2303 rose $1.5 million compared to 2002 due to increased revenues

= from higher volumes shipped ($3.1 million), higher average rates ($1.4 million) and increased charter
income ($1.8 million). These improvements were largely offset by higher fuel costs ($3.1 million) as
well as higher other operating expenses ($2 million) in 2003.

Shipping operating income for 2002 increased $2.1 million compared to 2001 due to increased
revenues from higher volumes shipped ($46.3 million) attributable primarily to acquisitions in 2002
and 2001, partially offset by the impact of higher operating expenses ($33.6 million) due primarity to
increased volumes shipped as a result of the acquisitions and lower average rates {$10.9 million) due
mainly to unfavorable economic conditions throughout the Caribbean region.

e Other energy ventures operating income for 2003 increased $1.5 million compared to 2002.
Operating results were higher in Nicor’s energy-related products and services businesses ($.7

- million). Also favorably impacting the year was the absence of project losses, as occurred in 2002,

= on former energy system development activities ($2.7 million).
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Item 7. Mapagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (continued)

Other energy ventures operating income for 2002 decreased $.4 million compared to 2001, Higher
operating results in the company’s energy-related products and services businesses ($4.2 million)
were more than offset by increased losses from the company’s former energy system development
activities ($4.7 million).

Other. In accordance with accounting guidance issued to the utility industry in late February 2004, the
financial statements for all periods presented reflect the reclassification of accrued removal costs from
accumulated depreciation to noncurrent liabilities. Accrued future removal costs approximated $670
million, $625 million and $575 million at December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. See Item 6,
Selected Financial Data and the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — Note 3 Other
Accounting Changes — Asset retirement obligations for further information. These reclassifications had
no impact on previously reported common equity or results of operations of Nicor.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Details of various financial and operating information by segment can be found in the tables throughout
this review. The following discussion summarizes the major items impacting Nicor’s results of

operations.

Operating revenues. Operating revenues by major business segment are presented below (in millions):

2003 2002 2001
Gas distribution $ 2,351.6 $ 1,590.7 $ 2,090.8
Shipping 272.2 266.0 230.3
Other energy ventures 96.5 56.9 43.7
Corporate and eliminations (57.6) (16.2) 1.5

$ 2,6627 § 1,8974 § 23663

Gas distribution revenues increased nearly 50 percent in 2003 compared to 2002 due primarily to higher

natural gas costs, which are passed directly through to customers without markup, subject to ICC review.
The revenue effect of higher natural gas costs was approximately $680 miilion. Revenues alsc increased
in 2003 by about $40 millicn due to colder weather. While residential deliveries rose on colder weather,
industrial deliveries fell due largely to lower power-generation load affected by mild summer weather.

The decrease in 2002 gas distribution revenues compared to 2001 was due primarily to much lower
average natural gas costs. The revenue effect of the lower average natural gas costs, estimated to be
approximately $575 million, was partially offset by the impact of colder weather (about $85 mitlion) in
2002 compared to 2001.

In 2003, shipping segment operating revenues increased due primarily to higher volumes shipped ($3.1
million), higher average rates ($1.4 million) and increased charter income ($1.8 million). Higher volumes
reflect increased activity from an acquisition that occurred in April 2002.

In 2002, shipping segment results included higher volume-related revenues ($46.3 million) partially offset
by lower average rates ($10.9 million). The increases in volume-related revenues resulted primarily from
acquisitions. The siow economy in the Caribbean region in 2002 put pressure on rates.
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Ttemn 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finameial Condition
and Results of Operations (continued)

The 2003 increase in revenues for other energy ventures was due primarily to the company’s energy-
related products and services businesses ($49.4 million), largely reflecting new customers and products,
such as utility-bill management products introduced in 2002. Negatively impacting 2003 were decreased
revenues from Nicor’s former energy system development activities ($10.1 million).

The 2002 increase in revenues for other energy ventures was due primarily to higher revenue at the

company’s energy-related products and services businesses, which increased $27.0 million to $40.0
million. Partially offsetting this increase were decreased revenues from former energy system
development activities ($10.1 million).

Corporate and eliminations reflects primarily the elimination of gas distribution revenues against
expenses for customers purchasing the utility-bill management products.

Gas distribution margin. Nicor utilizes a measure it refers to as “gas distribution margin” to evaluate
the operating income impact of gas distribution revenues. Gas distribution revenues include gas costs,
which are passed directly through to customers without markup, subject to ICC review, and revenue
taxes, for which Nicor Gas earns only a small administrative fee. These items often cause significant
fluctuations in gas distribution revenues, and yet they have virtually no direct impact on gas distribution
operating income. Therefore, Nicor Gas excludes these items in evaluating performance. A
reconciliation of gas distribution revenues and margin follows (in millions):

2003 2002 2001
Gas distribution revenues $ 2,351.6 $ 1,590.7 § 2,090.8
Cost of gas (1,692.7) 970.1) (1,477.5
Revenue tax expense (130.9) (92.4) (109.0)
Gas distribution margin $ 5280 § 5282 § 5043

Although 2003 and 2002 were essentially equal, a number of factors impacted margin. Negatively
impacting margin in 2003 was a smaller contribution from the Chicago Hub and other nontraditional gas
supply-related activities ($10.9 million) and lower industrial deliveries, mainly for power generation ($2.9
million). The company believes commercial and industrial deliveries were unfavorably impacted by
general economic conditions and higher natural gas prices. Positively impacting margin were increased
customer finance and late payment charges ($8 million) related to higher natural gas prices in 2003. The
absence of PBR plan losses as occurred in 2002 ($4.1 million) and increased deliveries due to colder
weather than the prior year (about $7 million), partiaily offset by an unfavorable variance from the
company’s weather hedge in 2003 compared to 2002 ($3.5 million), also positively impacted margin.

Gas distribution margin increased $23.9 million in 2002. Contributing to the 2002 improvement were
fower PBR plan losses compared to 2001 ($10.7 million). Additional information related to the PBR plan
is included in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 19 Contingencies - Performance-
Based Rate Plan. Other factors affecting margin in 2002 were the positive effects of increased natural gas
deliveries unrelated to weather ($6.6 million) and colder weather (about $4 million), and the negative
effect of lower revenues from customer finance and late payment charges ($4.8 million). The reduction
of revenues from customer finance and late payment charges was related to lower levels of customer
receivables arising from reduced natural gas prices in 2002.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Aralysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (continued)

Gas distribution operating and maintenance expense. The increase in gas distribution operating and
maintenance expense for 2003 of $20.5 million was due primarily to higher pension costs ($9.7 million),
higher insurance expense ($4.2 million), increased bad debt expense ($4.1 million), increased natural gas
costs to operate company equipment and facilities ($3.2 million), and higher health care costs ($2.7
million). These negative factors were partially offset by lower expenses related to the review of the
company’s PBR plan ($6.2 million).

Gas distribution operating and maintenance expense for 2002 and 2001 was $199.6 million and $177.1
million, respectively. The $22.5 million increase reflects smaller pension credits ($14.1 million),
increased legal and accounting costs related primarily to the PBR plan review ($8.7 million) and
increased health care costs ($3.5 million). These increases were partially offset by lower natural gas costs
to operate company equipment and facilities ($4.2 million).

Gas distribution operating and maintenance expense included pension credits of $9.2 million and $23.3
miltion in 2002 and 2001, respectively. Pension expense for 2003 was $.5 million. For more details
concerning fluctuations in pension credits, see the Factors That May Affect Business Performance - Gas
Distribution - Pension Investment Returns section.

Other gas distribution operating expenses. Mercury-related costs (recoveries), net reflects the
estimated costs, credits and recoveries associated with the company’s mercury inspection and repair
program. In 2003, 2002 and 2001, Nicor Gas reached agreements with insurers and independent
contractors whereby the company recovered approximately $18 million, $20 million and $3 million,
respectively, of mercury-related costs. In addition, in each of 2002 and 2001, a $9 million adjustment
lowered the mercury-related reserve and reduced operating expense. Additional information about the
company’s mercury inspection and repair program is presented in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements - Note 19 Contingencies - Mercury Program.

Property sale gains and losses vary from year-to-year depending upon property sales activity. The
company continues to assess its ownership of real estate holdings and anticipates an increase in property
sale activity in 2004.

Shipping operating expenses. Shipping segment operating expenses rose $4.7 million in 2003 versus
2002 due primarily to higher fuel costs ($3.1 million) and increased vessel charter expenses ($.6 million).
Increased fuel costs reflect the impact of higher fuel prices in 2003.

Shipping segment operating expenses rose $33.6 million in 2002 versus 2001 due primarily to increased
volumes shipped as a result of acquisitions. Increased costs included higher transportation and voyage
costs ($10.6 million), greater leased equipment costs ($5.1 million), higher wage and benefit costs ($4.1
million), and increased vessel charter expenses ($2.6 miilion).
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (continued)

Other energy ventures operating expemses. The $38.1 million increase in the 2003 operating expenses
compared to 2002 was due primarily to increased expenses at Nicor’s energy-related products and
services businesses ($48.6 million) associated largely with the addition of new customers and products.
This increase was partially offset by lower operating expenses from the company’s former energy system
and design activities ($12.9 million).

The $13.6 million increase in other energy ventures operating expenses for 2002 compared to 2001 was
due primarily to increased expenses at Nicor’s energy-related products and services businesses ($22.8
million) associated largely with the addition of new customers and products. The increase was partially
offset by lower operating expenses from Nicor’s former energy system development activities ($5.4
million) and its gas distribution technology business ($4.3 million).

Corporate operating expenses and eliminations. Corporate operating expenses of $8.2 million, $6.3
million and $2.6 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, include primarily legal and business
development costs. These costs were more than offset by intercompany eliminations, related primarily to
utility-bill management products offered by one of Nicor’s energy-related products and services
businesses.

Equity investment income (loss). Equity investment results were positively affected in 2003 by cash
receipts of $9.6 million from the company’s previously written-off investment in Nicor Energy. Lower
results in 2002 reflect a $9.2 million investment loss from Nicor Energy, including the impairment
writedown, compared with a loss of $.9 million in 2001. Equity investment results aiso include $5.5
million, $4.1 million and $3.6 million for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, for Nicor’s share of Triton
Container Investments LLC results.

Other income (expense). Other income (expense), net was $2.0 million in 2003, $3.4 million in 2002,
and $7.6 million in 2001. The fluctuation from year to year was due primarily to reduced short-term
investment levels and the resultant effect on interest income.

Interest expense. Interest expense decreased $1.2 million in 20063 and was down $7.5 million in 2002
compared to 2001 due to lower average borrowing levels and interest rates.

Income taxes. The company’s effective income tax rate rose to 35 percent in 2003 as compared to 31
percent in 2002 due principally to the effects of an increase in tax expense in 2003 relating to adjustments
of deferred tax accounts and a reduction in tax expense in 2002 resulting from the completion of an
income tax audit.

Cumulative effect of accounting change. The cumulative effect of a January 1, 2003 required
accounting change relates to the application of accrual accounting, rather than fair value accounting, to
gas in storage and certain energy-related contracts, such as storage and transportation contracts, at Nicor
Enerchange, Nicor’s wholesale natural gas marketing business.
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Htem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
p— and Results of Operations {continued)

Gas Distribution Statistics

w 2003 2002 2001
Operating revenues (millions)
Sales
Residential $ 1,611.9 $ 1,0574 $ 1,4864
Commercial 351.7 209.4 274.6
| Industrial ' 51.2 32.5 41.5
— 2,014.8 1,299.3 1,802.5
— Transportation
- Residential 22.7 16.3 8.5
Commercial 71.6 75.6 75.0
o Industrial 41.7 45.8 45.6
] Other 12.0 7.6 7.5
R 148.0 145.3 137.6
o Other revenues
Revenue taxes 134.0 95.3 112.3
-~ Environmental cost recovery 31.3 24.6 15.6
Performance-based rate plan - “4.1) (14.8)
Chicago Hub 7.3 154 13.0
Other 16.2 14.9 24.6
188.8 146.1 150.7

$ 2,351.6 $ 1,590.7 $ 2,090.8

Deliveries (Bcf)

Sales
Residential 214.9 212.9 201.5
Commercial 46.7 41.6 37.2
Industrial 7.0 6.9 5.9
268.6 261.4 244.6

: Transportation
Residential 16.6 11.0 6.1
Commercial 87.8 97.5 89.2
Industrial 121.2 149.2 135.3
225.6 2577 230.6
494.2 519.1 4752
Year-end customers (thousands)

Sales
Residential 1,745.2 1,733.6 1,766.5
Commercial 114.5 108.9 102.7
Industrial 7.3 7.0 6.7
1,867.0 1,849.5 1,875.9

Transportation
Residential 145.1 126.8 58.1
N Commercial 58.3 62.4 66.0
s Industrial 6.2 6.7 7.1
209.6 195.9 131.2
2,076.6 2,045.4 2,007.1
Other statistics

Degree days (normal 6,000) 6,068 5,779 5,422
Colder (warmer) than normal 1% (4)% (10)%

Average gas cost per Mcf sold $ 6.24 $ 3.67 $ 6.00
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Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (continued)

Shipping Statistics

2003 2002 2001
TEUs shipped (thousands) 177.1 175.1 1457
Revenue per TEU $ 1,525 $ 1,517 $ 1,579
Ports served 25 24 21
Vessels operated I5 16 17

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY

The company believes it has access to adequate resources to meet its needs for capital expenditures, debt
redemptions, dividend payments and working capital. These resources include net cash flow from
operating activities, access to capital markets, lines of credit and short-term investments.

Operating cash flows. The gas distribution business is highly seasonal and coperating cash flow may
fluctuate significantly during the year and from year-to-year due to factors such as weather, natural gas
prices, the timing of collections from customers, and natural gas purchasing and storage practices. The
company relies on short-term financing to meet seasonal increases in working capital needs. Cash
requirements generally increase during the third and fourth quarters due to increases in natural gas
purchases, gas in storage and accounts receivable. During the first and second quarters, positive cash
flow generally occurs from the sale of gas in storage and the collection of accounts receivable. This cash
is typically used to reduce short-term debt to near zero during the second quarter.

Net cash flow (used for) provided from operating activities was ${12.6) million, $268.3 million and
$491.3 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Operating cash flow for 2003 was negative due
primarily to changes in working capital items in the gas distribution segment. Two decisions in 2003
were the primary factors underlying the working capital changes. First, the company significantly
increased the quantity of owned gas in storage at December 31, 2003 as compared to December 31, 2002.
In addition, to reduce associated costs, the company chose to fund a significant portion of those purchases
through short-term borrowings (which are shown outside the operating segment, in the financing segment,
of the Consclidated Statements of Cash Flows) instead of accounts payable. As noted in the financing
activities section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the company had increased its short-term
debt borrowing capacity in anticipation of these two and other factors (including higher gas costs), v
accommodating the funding of these decisions without impacting the level of long-term borrowing. The
company believes that operating cash flow will be positive in 2004, as inventory and accounts payable
balances at year-end 2004 should be comparable to year-end 2003.

In the fourth quarter of 2003, Nicor received an income tax refund of approximately $100 million
attributable to a tax loss carryback associated with a change in tax accounting methods, subject to future
Internal Revenue Service review and approval. Decisions by taxing authorities may significantly impact
the company’s cash flow.

Operating cash flow was significantly lower in 2002 compared to 2001 due primarily to changes in
accounts receivable, accrued/deferred gas costs and accounts payable balances associated with natural gas
price volatility.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (comtinued)

— Capital expenditures. Capital expenditures by business segment are presented below (in millions):

7 Estimated
- 2004 2003 2002 2001
. Gas distribution $ 170§ 1729 § 1695 § 1498
Shipping 10 5.9 19.6 34.8
Cther energy ventures 7 2.5 34 1.1

$ 187 § 1813 § 1925 § 1857

Capital expenditures in the gas distribution segment for 2003 versus 2002 remained relatively level.
::::L Increased costs in 2003 for public main improvements of $8 million and higher capitalized pension costs
of $3 million were offset by a $6 million decrease in supply operations expenditures compared with 2002.
Supply operations expenditures in 2002 included the acquisition of a compressor for a storage facility.
Gas distribution capital expenditures were higher in 2002 than in 2001 due primarily to the acquisition of
the compressor and $6 million of higher capitalized employee benefit costs.
] Shipping segment capital expenditures were higher than normal in 2001 due primarily to the construction
. of two vessels. Expenditures were lower in 2002 and were further reduced in 2003 because vesse!
construction was completed in early 2002. Shipping segment capital expenditures are expected to rise in
2004 due to facilities renovations, the purchase of freight handling equipment and systems upgrades that
were postponed from 2003.

Capital expenditures are expected to be higher at our other energy ventures in 2004 as computer systems
are upgraded and facilities expanded at our retail energy-related products and services businesses.

Other investing activities. Nicor invested $10 million in each of 2003, 2002 and 2001 in a cargo
container leasing business and may invest a similar amount in 2004. Nicor’s equity investment in this
_— business at December 31, 2003 was $83.2 million.

In 2002, Nicor invested $16.5 million for a 50-percent share of equity in Horizon Pipeline. Nicor’s equity
investment in this business at December 31, 2003 was $19.9 million. Additional information about
””””””” Horizon Pipeline is presented on page 25.
Nicor’s equity investment in Nicor Energy was written off during the third quarter of 2002. During 2003,
Nicor recorded gains of $9.6 million upon the receipt of cash from Nicor Energy. Any future gains or
losses are expected to be minimal. Additional information about transactions with Nicor Energy is
provided within the Nicor Energy section of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 19
Contingencies.

In 2003, 2002 and 2001, Nicor Services, one of Nicor’s retail energy-related preducts and services
businesses, acquired existing operations and assets to establish a heating, ventilation and air conditioning
(HVAC) business. All purchases were made with shares of Nicor stock. Currently, Nicor Services has no
plans for further HVAC acquisitions.
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Ttem 7. Management’s Discussion amd Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations {continued)

In 2002, Tropical Shipping purchased certain assets of Tecmarine Lines Inc. and TMX Logistics Inc. for
cash, expanding its network of Caribbean and South American destinations. In 2001, Tropical Shipping
acquired the container assets of Kent Line International for cash, allowing Tropical Shipping to offer
Canadian customers an all-water service from New Brunswick, Canada, to Tropical Shipping’s network
of Caribbean destinations and Florida.

Financing activities. Nicor Gas has long-term debt ratings that are among the highest in the gas
distribution industry. As of the filing date of this report, the credit ratings as assigned by Standard and
Poor’s Ratings Services (S&P), Moody’s Investors Service (Moody’s) and Fitch Ratings (Fitch) are as
follows.

S&P Moody’s Fitch

Nicor Inc.

Commercial Paper A-1+ P-1 F1

Unsecured Credit Facility AA- n/a n/a
Nicor Gas

Commercial Paper A-1+ P-1 Fi+

First Mortgage Bonds AA Aa3 AA

Unsecured Credit Facility AA- n/a n/a

Senior Unsecured Debt AA Al AA-

In 2003, Moody’s downgraded Nicor Gas’ First Mortgage Bonds from Aal to Aa3, and Nicor Gas’ senior
unsecured debt from Aa2 to Al. In 2002, Fitch downgraded Nicor Inc.’s commercial paper from F1+ to
F1, Nicor Gas’ First Mortgage Bonds from AA+ to AA, and Nicor Gas’ senior unsecured debt from AA
to AA-. As of December 31, 2003, S&P’s ratings outlook for the company was Stable while Moody’s
and Fitch’s ratings outlooks were Negative.

Nicor’s debt-related financial statistics at December 31 include:

2003 2002 2001
Long-term debt, net of current maturities,
as a percent of capitalization 39.7% 35.1% 38.6%
Times interest earned, before income taxes 5.5 5.7 4.8

Long-term debt. The company typically uses the net proceeds from long-term debt for refinancing
outstanding debt, construction programs to the extent not provided by internally generated funds, and
general corporate purposes. At December 31, 2003, the company had the capacity to issue about another
$350 million of First Mortgage Bonds under the terms of its indenture, of which $75 million was
available for immediate issuance under a July 2001 shelf registration filing. Nicor is in compliance with
its debt covenants and believes it will continue to remain so. Nicor’s long-term debt agreements do not
include ratings triggers or material adverse change provisions.
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Ttem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (continued)

In 2003, Nicor Gas issued the following First Mortgage Bonds: $50 million due in 2023 at 5.80%, $50
million due in 2032 at 5.90%, and $50 million due in 2033 at 5.90%. Retirements of First Mortgage
Bonds in 2003 were as follows: $50 million due in 2003 at 5.75% and $50 million due in 2027 at 7.375%.

In April 2003, Nicor Gas refinanced $50 million of 3% unsecured notes due in April 2003 with $50
million of 1.6% unsecured notes due and paid in October 2003.

In 2001, Nicor Gas issued the following First Mortgage Bonds: $50 million due in 2006 at 5.55%, $75
million due in 2008 at 5.875%, $75 million due in 2011 at 6.625%, and $50 million due in 2016 at 7.2%.
Retirements of First Mortgage Bonds in 2001 were as follows: $75 million due in 2061 at 6.45%, $50
million due in 2002 at 6.75%, $50 million due in 2021 at 8.875%, and $50 million due in 2025 at 7.26%.
During 2001, Nicor Gas also retired $50 million of variable-rate unsecured notes.

Short-term debt. The company relies on short-term financing to meet temporary operating cash flow
needs resulting from seasonal changes in working capital. Nicor Inc. and Nicor Gas maintain short-term
line of credit agreements with major domestic and foreign banks. These agreements, which serve as
backup for the issuance of commercial paper, aliow for borrowings of up to $1 billion through March
2004 and $500 million thereafter through September 2004. Commitment fees paid in advance totaled
$2.9 million and are being amortized over the respective terms of the agreements as interest expense. The
company had $575 miliion and $315 million of commercial paper borrowings outstanding at December
31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Under the company’s 2003/2004 short-term line of credit agreements, if (1) Nicor’s or Nicor Gas’ ratio of
consolidated indebtedness to capitalization (including short-term debt) exceeds 65% at the end of the first,
second or third fiscal quarter, or 70% at December 31, 2003, or (2) Nicor’s or Nicor Gas’ twelve-months-
ended interest coverage ratio is less than 3 to 1 at the end of any fiscal quarter during the term of the
credit agreements, banks representing two-thirds of the commitments may declare any amounts due
immediately payable and/or terminate the commitments to make advances to the company. The company
is in compliance with these covenants at December 31, 2003. The company expects that commercial
paper and the related backup line of credit agreements funding will continue to be available in the
foreseeable future.

Common stock. In 2001, Nicor completed a previously initiated $50 million common stock repurchase
program and announced a new $50 million common stock repurchase program. Purchases may be made
as market conditions permit through open market transactions and to the extent cash flow is available
after other cash needs and investment opportunities. The company purchased and retired .4 million and
1.1 million common shares in 2002 and 2001, respectively, at a cost of $18 million and $42 million,
respectively, under the stock repurchase programs. There were no purchases under the existing program
in 2003, and at December 31, 2003, approximately $22 million remained authorized for the repurchase of
common stock.

Nicor increased its quarterly common stock dividend rate during 2003 by 1.1 percent to $.465 per
common share. The company paid dividends on its common stock of $81.7 million, $8C.4 million and
$78.5 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Nicor currently has no contractual or regulatory
restrictions on the payment of dividends.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (continued)

Contractual obligations. As of December 31, 2003, Nicor had contractual obligations with payments
due as follows (in millions):

Payments due by period

Less More

than 1 1-3 3-5 than 5

Total year years years years
Purchase obligations $1,240.9 $ 654.0 $ 3774 $ 1653 $ 442
Long-term debt 500.0 - 50.0 75.0 375.0
Operating leases 54.0 18.1 24.0 51 6.8
Other long-term obligations 13.1 2.7 5.5 3.2 17

$1,808.0 $ 674.8 § 456.9 § 2486 § 4277

Purchase obligations consist primarily of natural gas transportation and storage contracts, and natural gas
purchase agreements in the gas distribution and wholesale natural gas marketing segments. Purchase
obligations also include obligations to purchase natural gas at future market prices, calculated using
December 31, 2003 NYMEX futures prices.

Operating leases are primarily for vessels, containers and equipment in the shipping segment, and for
office space and equipment in the gas distribution segment. Rental expense under operating leases was
$23.7 million, $23.0 miliion and $14.6 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Off-balance sheet arrangememnts. Nicor has certain guarantees, as further described in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 18 Guarantees and Indemnities. The company believes that it is
unlikely that these guarantees will have a material effect on its financial condition.

Other. Restrictions imposed by regulatory agencies and loan agreements limiting the amount of
subsidiary net assets that can be transferred to Nicor are not expected to have a material impact on the
company’s ability to meet its cash obligations.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Nicor prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States, which regularly require Nicor’s management to exercise judgment in the
selection and application of accounting methods. The application of accounting methods includes making
estimates using subjective assumptions and judgments about matters that are inherently uncertain.

The use of estimates and the selection of accounting policies affect Nicor’s reported resuits and financial
condition. The company has adopted several significant accounting policies and is required to make
significant accounting estimates that are important to understanding its financial statements and are
described throughout the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Ttem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (continued)

Although there are numerous areas in which Nicor’s management makes significant accounting estimates,
it believes its critical estimates are those that require management’s most difficult and subjective or
complex judgments. Nicor’s management has a practice of reviewing its critical accounting estimates and
policy decisions with the audit committee of its board of directors. Its critical estimates typically involve
loss contingencies, derivative instruments, income taxes, credit risk and unbilled revenues because they
are estimates which could materially impact Nicor’s financial statements.

Loss comtingencies. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (FAS) No. 3,
Nicor and its subsidiaries record contingent losses as liabilities when a loss is both probable and the
amount or range of loss, including related legal defense costs, is reasonably estimable. When only a
range of potential loss is estimable, the company records a liability for the minimum anticipated loss.
Nicor and its subsidiaries and affiliates are involved in various legal and regulatory proceedings and are
exposed to various loss contingencies. These loss contingencies are in some cases resolved in stages over
time, estimates may change significantly from period to period, and the company’s ultimate obligations
may differ materially from its estimates. Of particular note is the PBR plan contingency at Nicor Gas
described in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 19 Contingencies.

Derivative instruments. The rules for determining whether a contract meets the definition of a
derivative instrument or quaiifies for hedge accounting treatment are numerous and complex. The
treatment of a single contract may vary from period to period depending upon accounting elections,
changes in management’s assessment of the likelihood of future hedged transactions or new
interpretations of accounting rules. As a result, management judgment is required in the determination of
the appropriate accounting treatment. In addition, the estimated fair value of derivative instruments may
change significantly from period to period depending upon market projections, and changes in hedge
effectiveness may impact the accounting treatment. These determinations and changes in estimates may
have a material impact on reported results.

Imcome taxes. A deferred income tax liability is not required on undistributed foreign earnings that are
indefinitely reinvested offshore. Nicor has recorded a $47 million deferred income tax liability associated
with foreign earnings it may repatriate, and it has not recorded deferred income taxes of $7 million cn
approximately $20 million of cumulative undistributed foreign earnings it believes to be indefinitely
reinvested offshore. Changes in management plans or circumstances could resulit in a different deferred
income tax liability.

Credit risk. Nicor’s subsidiaries and affiliates are required to estimate credit risk in establishing
allowances for doubtful accounts and in estimating the fair values of certain derivative instruments with
counterparty credit risk being an especially difficult and critical judgment. Actual credit losses could vary
materially from Nicor’s estimates. Nicor’s allowance for doubtful accounts at December 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001 was $21.2 million, $16.9 miliion and $12.3 million, respectively, as presented on Schedule II on
page 67.

Unbilled revenues. Nicor Gas estimates revenues for gas deliveries not yet billed to customers from the
last billing date to month-end (unbilled revenues). Unbilled revenue estimates are dependent upon a
number of factors which require management judgment, including projections of gas costs, weather and
customer usage. These estimates are adjusted when actual billings occur, and changes in estimates can be
material. Estimated unbilled revenues for Nicor Gas at December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 were $139
million, $142.4 million and $88.1 million, respectively.
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Ttem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (continued)

FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The following factors can impact year-to-year comparisons and may affect the future performance of
Nicor’s businesses. -

Gas distribution. Nicor Gas, a regulated natural gas distribution utility, serves over two million
customers in a service territory that encompasses most of the northern third of Illinois, excluding the city
of Chicago. The region’s economy is diverse and its customer base has grown steadily over the years,
providing Nicor Gas with a well-balanced mix of residential, commercial and industrial customers. In
2003, residential, commercial and industrial customers accounted for approximately 45 percent, 30
percent and 25 percent of natural gas deliveries, respectively.

Weather. Natural gas deliveries are temperature-sensitive and seasonal since about one-half of all

deliveries are used for space heating. Typically, about 70 percent of deliveries and revenues occur from -
Cctober through March. Fluctuations in weather have the potential to significantly impact year-to-year .
comparisons of operating income and cash flow. -

In 2001, 2002 and the first quarter of 2003, Nicor Gas purchased earnings protection against the impact of
significantly warmer-than-normal or colder-than-normal weather. No agreement is in effect for the
2003/2004 heating season. There is a partial offset to Nicor Gas’ weather risk that arises from the utility-
bill management products marketed by Nicor Solutions, a Nicor energy-related products and services
business. Before consideration of this offset, it is estimated that in 2004 a 100-degree-day variation from
normal weather (about 6,000 degree days per year) may affect Nicor’s earnings per share by about 2-1/2
cents. It is estimated that the offset arising from utility-bill management products is at least one third that
amount. The actual amount of this offset will vary depending on the number of customers for these
products and the market price for natural gas. The company will continue to evaluate its coverage options
to determine whether any weather protection should be purchased.

Demand and natural gas prices. In addition to the impact of weather, significant changes in economic

conditions or natural gas prices can impact customer gas usage. However, Nicor Gas’ large residential =
customer base provides relative stability during weak economic periods, and the industrial and :
commercial customer base is well diversified, lessening the impact of industry-specific economic swings.

Nicor Gas’ growth in natural gas deliveries has traditionally come from customer additions and increased
usage by commercial and industrial customers. In 2003 commercial and industrial deliveries were
unfavorably impacted by general economic conditions. The company is uncertain as to the long-term
impact of this factor.

Changes in the price of natural gas have no direct impact on gas distribution margin since gas costs are
passed directly through to customers without markup, subject to ICC review. However, high natural gas
prices can have an adverse effect on accounts receivable collections, customer demand, company-use gas
expenses, financing costs and customer service expenses.
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ftem 7.  Mamagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Cendition
and Results of Operations {continued)

Competition. Nicor Gas competes with other energy suppliers based on such factors as price, service and
reliability. The company believes that it is well positioned to deal with the possibility of fuel switching
by customers because it has rates and services designed to compete against alternative fuels. In addition,
the company has a rate that allows negotiation with potential bypass customers, and no customer has
bypassed the Nicor Gas system since the rate became effective in 1987. Nicor Gas also offers
commercial and industrial customers alternatives in rates and service, increasing its ability to compete in
these markets. '

Storage and supply. Nicor Gas has a direct connection to eight interstate pipelines and extensive
underground storage capacity that provides the company and its transportation customers with flexibility
and alternatives for natural gas supply procurement and storage services. In addition, in an effort to
ensure supply reliability, the company purchases gas from several different producing regions under
varied contract terms.

Customer choice of commodity supplier. Since March 2002, all Nicor Gas customers have had a choice
of natural gas suppliers. Previously, supplier choice was available to all industrial and commercial
customers and about 15 percent of residential customers. The choice of another natural gas commodity
supplier has no direct impact on gas distribution margin because natural gas costs are passed directly
through to customers without markup, subject to ICC review. Nicor Gas continues to deliver the natural
gas, maintain its distribution system and respond to emergencies.

Customer credit risk. Nicor Gas has a diversified customer base, which limits its exposure to
concentrations of credit risk in any one industry or income class. The company believes that it maintains
prudent credit policies, subject to ICC regulations. Customers also have options to help them manage
their bills, such as energy assistance programs for low-income customers and a budget payment plan that
spreads gas bills more evenly throughout the year. However, high natural gas prices can increase the risk
of customer nonpayment. Nicor Gas experienced increasing bad debt expense in the past three years due
in part to high natural gas prices and increasingly adverse credit experience consistent with general
market conditions. It is expected that high natural gas prices will continue in 2004. See also the Credit
Risk section on page 27.

Pension investment returns. Nicor Gas maintains a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan
covering substantially all employees hired prior to 1998. For actuarial valuation purposes, Nicor Gas
utilizes an October 1 measurement date to determine the company’s pension expense or credit for the
subsequent calendar year. During the 12 months ended September 30, 2002, the pension plans
experienced poor investment returns consistent with general market conditions, negatively impacting the
company’s 2003 operating income. The company’s pension credit (expense) included in operating
income was $(.5) million, $9.2 million and $23.3 miilion in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Pension
credits represented 4 percent and 12 percent of Nicor’s net income in 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The October 1, 2003 actuarial valuation reflected higher asset values which, absent any plan or
accounting rule changes, will lead to a pension credit for 2004, increasing operating income by about $3
million. Actuarial assumptions affecting 2004 include an expected rate of return on plan assets of 8.50%
and a discount rate of 6.00%, reduced from 8.75% and 6.75%, respectively, for 2003. Anticipated
impacts of the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 have not yet
been estimated by Nicor Gas.

The pension plans are adequately funded, and recent market performance is not expected to impact
participant benefits or future company contributions. However, substantial declines in market
performance or changes to actuarial assumptions could require future company contributions.
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Item 7.  Management’s Discussion and Amnalysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations {continued)

Nontraditional activities. Nicor Gas continues to pursue nontraditional activities, including the Chicago
Hub, which provides natural gas transportation and storage services. The Chicago area is a major market
hub for natural gas, and demand exists for storage and transmission-related services by marketers, other
gas distribution companies and electric power-generation facilities. During 2003, 2002 and 2001, the
Chicago Hub contributed to operating income $7.3 million, $15.4 million and $13.0 million, respectively.
The 2003 decline reflects primarily unfavorable general market conditions, including less liquidity in the
market.

Regulation. Nicor Gas is regulated by the ICC, which establishes the rules and regulations governing
utility rates and services in [llinois. Certain rates are updated monthly and designed to recover specific
past costs, such as gas supply and environmental costs, subject to an annual prudence review. Base rates,
on the other hand, are designed to allow the company an opportunity to recover its costs and to earn a fair
return for its investors. Nicor Gas has the option to seek ICC approval for a base rate increase. Once
started, a rate relief proceeding generally takes about one year. The company’s last rate increase was in
1996. Significant changes in the regulations applicable to Nicor Gas or its affiliates, or the regulatory
environment in general, could affect the performance of Nicor Gas. Information regarding certain ICC
proceedings is presented within the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 19
Contingencies - Performance-Based Rate Plan.

Labor negotiations. The current labor contract between Nicor Gas and the International Brotherhood of
Electrical Workers (IBEW) Local 19 expires on February 29, 2004. The current agreement covers
approximately 1,500 physical and clerical employees of Nicor Gas. As of the filing date of this report,
negotiations between IBEW representatives and the company continue. Nicor Gas believes that there are
adequate contingency plans in the event of a work stoppage, which the company currently does not
expect.

Cutlook. Due to the absence of gains from mercury-related recoveries that occurred in 2003 and higher
operating costs, gas distribution results for 2004 are expected to be lower than 2003. Also, the ICC’s
Performance-Based Rate Plan/Purchased Gas Adjustment review could significantly affect 2004 results,
but is not estimable.

Shipping. Tropical Shipping is one of the largest containerized cargo carriers in the Bahamas and
Caribbean region. Tropical Shipping has a reputation for providing quality, on-time delivery service - a
reputation that has helped the company establish a leading position in most of the markets it serves. The
company is a major carrier of exports from the east coast of the United States and Canada to the
Caribbean region.

The company’s shipments consist primarily of southbound cargo such as food, building materials and
other necessities for developers, manufacturers and residents in the Caribbean, as well as tourist-related
shipments intended for use in hotels and resorts, and on cruise ships. The balance of Tropical Shipping’s
cargo consists of northbound shipments of agricultural products and apparel, and interisland shipments.

Tropical Shipping’s financial results can be affected significantly by general economic conditions in the
United States, the Caribbean region and Canada. The Caribbean marketplace is very competitive, with
global carriers having established a presence in several markets that Tropical Shipping serves.
Unfavorable economic conditions in the Caribbean and the United States have had a negative impact on
tourism and on construction projects in many of the markets served and continues to put competitive
pressures on rates. Tropical Shipping is continuing to meet these challenges by focusing on superior
customer service, controlling costs, and maximizing the efficiency and utilization of its vessel fleet and
shore assets.
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Ttem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis ef Firancial Condition
and Results of Operations (continued)

Tropical Shipping is implementing recent U.S. legislation (the Maritime Transportation Security Act) and
corresponding international law (The International Ship and Port-facility Security Code), which require
comprehensive security assessments and plans for vessels and facilities, not only in the United States but
throughout the world. The measures required for compliance are far-reaching, and trade could be
adversely affected in areas where foreign ports do not comply.

In 2002, Tropical Shipping purchased certain assets of Tecmarine Lines Inc. and TMX Logistics Inc. for
cash, expanding its network of Caribbean and South American destinations. In 2001, Tropical Shipping
acquired the container assets of Kent Line International for cash, which allowed it to begin offering
Canadian customers an all-water service from New Brunswick, Canada, to Tropical Shipping’s network
of Caribbean destinations and Florida.

Nicor anticipates 2004 results in the shipping segment to be fairly consistent with 2003.

Other energy ventures. Nicor owns several energy-related businesses including two retail energy-
related products and services companies and 2 natural gas marketing company. Nicor is also involved in
several joint ventures, including a natural gas pipeline, is pursuing varicus other energy-related ventures
and has almost fully liquidated its investment in 2 retail energy marketing joint venture.

Nicor Services and Nicor Sclutions provide energy-related products and services for retail markets,
including residential and small commercial users. Nicor Services offers products and services covering
the sales, installation, maintenance, repair and improvement of heating and air conditioning related
equipment, including natural gas piping inside homes, ductwork and other equipment. Nicor Solutions
offers its customers energy-related financial products, which include utility-bill management plans as well
as natural gas price protection plans. Nicor’s retail businesses contributed $8.1 million in operating
income in 2003, compared with $7.4 million in 2002 and $3.2 million in 2001.

Nicor Enerchange engages in wholesale marketing of natural gas supply services primarily in the
Midwest. Nicor Enerchange also administers the Nicor Gas Chicago Hub and manages Nicor Solutions
product risk. Reductions in the storage capacity available to Nicor Enerchange may negatively impact its
results. Nicor Enerchange contributed $1.6 million of operating income in 2003, compared with $3.2
million in 2002 and in 2001. Net income for 2003 also included a $4.5 million cumulative effect loss, net
of income tax expense, from an accounting change which requires the application of accrual accounting
rather than fair value accounting to gas in storage and certain energy-related contracts. See the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 2 Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting. Annual and
interim results are subject to greater volatility under the new accounting method.

Horizon Pipeline, a 50-percent-owned joint venture with Natural Gas Pipeline Company of America,
began operating a 74-mile pipeline in northern [llinois in mid-2002. In 2003 and 2002, Horizon Pipeline
contributed $1.5 million and $1.3 million of pretax earnings, respectively. Nicor continues to explore
new energy ventures.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (continued)

Nicor has substantially liquidated its investment in Nicor Energy, a 50-percent-owned retail energy
marketing joint venture with Dynegy Marketing and Trade. Nicor’s investment in Nicor Energy was
written off in 2002 due to the belief at that time that Nicor ultimately wotuld not recover its investment
balance. During 2003, Nicor Energy disposed of its customer contracts, ceased operations, and is in the
process of liquidating its remaining assets and resolving remaining contingent liabilities. Nicor recorded
gains of $9.6 million in 2003 upon the receipt of cash from Nicor Energy and future gains or losses are
expected to be minimal.

Market risk. Nicor is exposed to market risk in the normal course of its business operations, including
the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in natural gas commodity prices, credit conditions and
interest rates. It is Nicor’s practice to manage these risks utilizing derivative instruments and other
methods, as deemed appropriate.

Commodity price risk. With regard to commodity price risk, the company has established policies and
procedures governing the management of such risks and the use of derivative instruments to hedge its
exposure to such risks. A risk management commiitee oversees compliance with such policies and
procedures. The company utilizes various techniques to limit, measure and monitor market risk,
including limits based on volume, dollar amounts and duration, and in some cases value at risk (VaR).
VaR is the potential loss for an instrument or portfolio from adverse changes in market factors, for a
specified time period and at a specified confidence level. The company’s risk management committee
has established exposure limits at such a level that material adverse economic results are not expected.
The company’s commodity price risk policies and procedures continue to evolve with its businesses and
are subject to ongoing review and modification.

In accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) disclosure requirements, Nicor performs
sensitivity analyses to assess the potential loss in earnings based upon a hypothetical 10 percent adverse
change in market prices. Management does not believe that sensitivity analyses alone provide an accurate
or reliable method for monitoring and controlling risks and therefore also relies on the experience and
judgment of its management to revise strategies and adjust positions as deemed necessary. Losses in
excess of the amounts determined in sensitivity analyses could occur if market prices exceed the 10
percent shift used for the analyses. Based on Nicor’s unhedged positions at December 31, 2003, a 10
percent decrease in natural gas prices would have increased Nicor’s earnings at December 31, 2003 by
about $100,000, which is not materially different than in the prior year.

Nicor’s regulated utility, Nicor Gas, is not directly exposed to market risk caused by changes in
commodity prices because of [llinois rate reguiation allowing for the recovery of prudently incurred
natural gas supply costs from customers. However, substantial increases in natural gas prices may
indirectly impact Nicor Gas’ earnings by increasing the cost of gas used by the company, bad debt
expense and other operating expenses. Higher natural gas prices may also lead to lower customer gas
consumption and margin. The company is mitigating these risks through the use of fixed-price purchase
agreements, futures contracts and swap agreements.

Nicor’s other energy businesses are subject to natural gas commodity price risk, arising primarily from
fixed-price purchase and sale agreements and natural gas inventories. Derivative instruments such as
futures, options, forwards and swaps may be used to hedge this risk. In addition, management believes it
has taken appropriate steps to mitigate the risks of loss associated with its utility-bill management
products.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (continued)

At December 31, 2003, Nicor Enerchange, Nicor’s wholesale natural gas marketing business, had
derivative contracts outstanding with the following fair values (in millions):

Maturity
Total Less than [to3 3to5
Source of Fair Value Fair Value 1 Year Years Years
Prices actively quoted $ 1.1 $ 2.5 $ (1.4 $ -
Prices based on pricing models 1 - 1 -
Total $ 1.2 $ 25 $ (13) $ -

Credit risk. The company is also exposed to credit risk in the event a counterparty, customer or supplier
defaults on a contract to pay for or deliver product at agreed-upon terms and conditions. To manage this
risk, the company has established procedures to determine and monitor the creditworthiness of
counterparties, to require guarantees or collateral back-up, and to limit its exposure to any one
counterparty. Nicor also, in some instances, enters into netting arrangements to mitigate counterparty
credit risk.

Interest rate risk. Nicor is exposed to changes in interest rates. The company manages its interest rate
risk by issuing long-term fixed-rate debt with varying maturities, refinancing certain debt and periodically
hedging the interest rate on anticipated borrowings. For further information about debt securities, interest
rates and fair values, see the Financial Statements - Consolidated Statements of Capitalization, the Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements - Note & Fair Value of Financial Instruments and the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 7 Short-Term and Long-Term Debt.

Other. The 2004 effective income tax rate is currently expected to be about 32 percent.

Contingencies. The following contingencies of Nicor are in various stages of investigation or
disposition. Although in some cases the company is unable to estimate the amount of loss reasonably
possible in addition to any amounts already recognized, it is possible that the resolution of these
contingencies, either individually or in aggregate, will require the company to take charges against, or
will result in reductions in, future earnings. It is the opinion of management that the resolution of these
contingencies, either individually or in aggregate, could be material to earnings in a particular period but
is not expected to have a material adverse impact on Nicor's liquidity or financial condition.

Performance-based rate plan. Nicor Gas’ PBR plan for natural gas costs went into effect in 2000 and
was terminated by the company effective January 1, 2003. Under the PBR plan, Nicor Gas’ total gas
supply costs were compared to a market-sensitive benchmark. Savings and losses relative to the
benchmark were determined annuaily and shared equaily with sales customers. The PBR is currently
under [llinois Commerce Commission (ICC) review.

There are allegations that the company acted improperly in connection with the PBR plan, and the ICC
and others are reviewing these allegations. On June 27, 2002 the Citizens Utility Board (CUB) filed a
motion to reopen the record in the [CC’s proceedings to review the PBR plan (the ICC Proceedings). As
a result of the motion to reopen, Nicor Gas, the Cook County State’s Attorney Office (CCSAOQ), the staff
of the ICC and CUB entered into a stipulation providing for additional discovery. The Illinois Attorney
General’s Office has also intervened in this matter. In addition, the Illinois Attorney General’s Office
issued Civil Investigation Demands (CIDs) to CUB and the ICC staff. The CIDs ordered that CUB and
the ICC staff produce all documents relating to any claims that Nicor Gas may have presented, or caused
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Ttem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
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to be presented, false information related to its PBR plan. Parties who were plaintiffs in a dismissed class
action proceeding against the company could potentiaily intervene in these proceedings. The company
has committed to cooperate fully in the reviews of the PBR plan.

In response to these allegations, on July 18, 2002, the Nicor Board of Directors appointed a special
committee of independent, non-management directors to conduct an inquiry into issues surrounding
natural gas purchases, sales, transportation, storage and such other matters as may come to the attention of
the special committee in the course of its investigation. The special committee presented the report of its
counsel (Report) to Nicor’s Board of Directors on October 28, 2002. The findings of the Report include:

o Certain transactions increased customer costs in the aggregate amount of approximately $15 miltion.

® No improper Nicor affiliated-party transactions or improper hedging activities were identified.

e Inadvertent accounting errors occurred, sometimes to the benefit of customers and sometimes to the
benefit of Nicor Gas.

o No criminal activity or fraud was identified.

In response, the Nicor Board of Directors directed the company’s management to, among other things,
make appropriate adjustments to account for, and fully address, the adverse consequences to ratepayers of
the items noted in the Report, and conduct a detailed study of the adequacy of internal accounting and
regulatory controls. The adjustments were made in financial statements resulting in a $24.1 million
liability at December 31, 2003. Included in such $24.1 million adjustments is a $4.1 million loss
contingency. In addition, Nicor Gas estimates that there is $26.9 million due to the company from the
2002 PBR plan year, which has not been recognized in the financial statements due to uncertainties
surrounding the PBR plan. The net of these items results in a $2.8 million reimbursement the company is
seeking as of December 31, 2003, pending resolution of the proceedings discussed below. The company
has taken steps throughout 2003 to correct the weaknesses and deficiencies identified in the detailed study
of the adequacy of internal controls.

Pursuant to the agreement of all parties, including the company, the ICC re-opened the 1999 and 2000
purchased gas adjustment filings for review of certain transactions related to the PBR plan and
consolidated the reviews of the 1999-2002 purchased gas adjustment filings with the PBR plan review.

On February 5, 2003, the CCSAO and CUB filed a motion for $27 million in sanctions against the
company in the ICC Proceedings. In that motion, CCSAQO and CUB alleged that Nicor Gas’ responses to
certain CUB data requests were false. Also on February 5, 2003, CUB stated in a press release that, in
addition to $27 million in sanctions, it would seek additional refunds to consumers. On March 5, 2003,
the ICC staff filed a response brief in support of CUB’s motion for sanctions. On May 1, 2003, the
Administrative Law Judges issued a ruling denying CUB and CCSAQO’s motion for sanctions. CUB has
filed an appeal of the motion for sanctions with the ICC, and the ICC has indicated that it will not rule on
the appeal until the final disposition of the ICC proceedings. It is not possible to determine how the ICC
will resolve the claims of CCSAQ, CUB or other parties to the ICC Proceedings.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Aralysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (continued)

In November 2003, the ICC staff, CUB, CCSAO and the Illinois Attorney General’s Office (IAGO) filed
their respective direct testimony in the ICC Proceedings. The ICC staff is seeking refunds to customers of
approximately $108 million and CUB and CCSAQO were jointly seeking refunds to customers of
approximately $143 million. The [AGO direct testimony alleges adjustments in a range from $145
million to $190 million. The IAGO testimony as filed is presently unclear as to the amount which IAGC
seeks to have refunded to customers. On February 27, 2004 the above referenced intervenors filed their
rebuttal testimony in the ICC Proceedings. In such rebuttal testimony, CUB and CCSAQ amended the
alleged amount to be refunded to customers from approximately $143 million to $190 million. Nicor Gas
filed rebuttal testimony in January 2004, which is consistent with the findings of the special committee
Report and, as noted above, seeks a reimbursement to Nicor Gas of approximately $2.8 million.

Nicor is unable to predict the outcome of any of the foregoing reviews or the company’s potential
exposure thereunder. Because the PBR plan and historical gas costs are still under ICC review, the final
outcome could be materially different than the amounts reflected in the company’s financial statements as
of December 31, 2003.

Nicor Energy. Significant developments have occurred relating to Nicor’s 50-percent interest in Nicor
Energy. Accounting irregularities at Nicor Energy were identified in 2002. Information about these
developments is presented within the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — Note 19
Contingencies — Nicor Energy.

On December 10, 2003, the United States Attorney for the Northern District of Illinois indicted three
former employees of Nicor Energy and an outside lawyer for Nicor Energy. The indictments alleged that
the defendants fraudulently deprived Nicor Energy, a 50/50 joint venture between Nicor Inc. and Dynegy
Inc., of their honest services and caused a [oss to investors in Nicor Inc. and Dynegy Inc. During the time
period covered by the indictments, Nicor Energy was a stand alone entity with its own management and
was operated independently from Nicor Inc. and Nicor Gas. None of the individuals indicted are
employees of Nicor Inc. or Nicor Gas nor were they at the time of the charged conduct. The three former
employees of Nicor Energy have pled guilty to the charges. Separately, on December 10, 2003, the
United States Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) filed its own civil enforcement action against
the same three former employees and one additional former employee of Nicor Energy. While Nicor is
unable to predict the final outcome of these matters, the resolution of such matters is not expected to have
a material adverse impact on the company’s financial condition or results of operations.

SEC and U.S. Attorney Inguiries. In 2002, the staff of the SEC informed Nicor and Nicor Energy that the
SEC is conducting a formal inquiry regarding both the PBR plan and Nicor Energy. A representative of
the Office of the United States Attorney for the Northern District of Illinois has notified Nicor that that
office is conducting an inquiry on the same matters that the SEC is investigating, and a grand jury is also
reviewing these matters. Nicor is unable to predict the outcome of these inquiries or Nicor’s potential
exposure related thereto and has not recorded a liability associated with the outcome of these
contingencies.

Securities Class Actions. Nicor and certain of its executives are defendants in a consolidated class action
lawsuit. Information about this action is presented within the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements - Note 19 Contingencies - Securities Class Actions.




Li

fididoi

bighi kol

{ |

pdm gl

P T

Sk ok

bk bdidld

N

it b e il ki d e d

TSRy

L.

bl

B
E
B
&

3
=
-

Nicor Ine. Page 30

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financizal Condition
and Results of Operations (concluded)

Shareholder Derivative Lawsuits. Certain Nicor executives and all members of its Board of Directors are
defendants in a consolidated derivative lawsuit. Further information about this lawsuit is presented within
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 19 Contingencies - Shareholder Derivative
Lawsuits.

Mercury. Future operating results may be impacted by adjustments to the company’s estimated mercury
liability or by related recoveries. Additional information about mercury contingencies is presented in the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 19 Contingencies - Mercury.

Manufactured gas plont sites. The company is conducting environmental investigations and remedial
activities at former manufactured gas plant sites. Additional information about these sites is presented in
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 19 Contingencies - Manufactured Gas Plant
Sites.

Other contingencies. The company is involved in legal or administrative proceedings before various
courts and agencies with respect to general claims, rates, taxes, environmental and other matters. See the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 19 Contingencies.

CAUTION CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This document includes certain forward-looking statements about the expectations of Nicor, and its
subsidiaries and affiliates. Although Nicor believes these statements are based on reasonable
assumptions, actual results may vary materially from stated expectations. Such forward-looking
statements may be identified by the use of forward-looking words or phrases such as “anticipate,”
“believe,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “planned,” “potential,” “should,” “will,” “would,” “project,”
“estimate,” or similar phrases. Actual results may differ materially from those indicated in the company’s
forward-looking statements due to the direct or indirect effects of legal contingencies (including
litigation) and the resolution of those issues, including the effects of an ICC review, and undue reliance
shouid not be placed on such statements. Other factors that could cause materially different resuits
include, but are not limited to, weather conditions; natural gas and other fuel prices; fair value accounting
adjustments; health care costs; insurance costs; legal costs; borrowing needs; interest rates; credit
conditions; economic and market conditions; Caribbean tourism; energy conservation; legislative and
regulatory actions; tax rulings or audit results; asset sales; significant unplanned capital needs; future
mercury-related charges or credits; changes in accounting principles, methods, judgments or estimates;
performance of major suppliers and contractors; labor relations; and acts of terrorism. Readers are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the
date of this filing. Nicor undertakes no obligation to publicly release any revision to these forward-
looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this filing.

ftem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

For disclosures about market risk, see the Market Risk section beginning on page 26, which is
incorporated herein by reference.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Nicor Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and statements of capitalization of Nicor
Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consclidated
statements of operations, common equity, comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2003. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule
listed in the Index at Item 15(a)(2). These financial statements and the financial statement schedule are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements and the financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that cur audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Nicor Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our
opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Notes 2 and 3 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2003, the Company changed its
method of accounting for energy trading activities and gas inventories and its method of classifying future
removal costs of utility property, plant and equipment.

As described in the fourth paragraph of Note 3, accrued removal costs have been reclassified in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2002.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Chicago, Illinois
February 19, 2004 (March 1, 2004 as to the fourth paragraph of Note 3 and the fifth and sixth sentences of
the eighth paragraph of Note 19)
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Consolidated Statements of Operations
(millions, except per share data)

Year ended December 31
2003 2002 2001
Operating revenues
Gas distribution (includes revenue taxes of $134.0,
$95.3, and $112.3, respectively) $ 2,351.6 $ 1,590.7 $ 2,090.8
Shipping 2722 266.0 230.3
Other energy ventures 96.5 56.9 43.7
Corporate and eliminations (57.6) (16.2) 1.5
2,662.7 1,897.4 2,366.3
Operating expenses
Gas distribution
Cost of gas 1,692.7 970.1 1,477.5
Operating and maintenance 220.1 199.6 177.1
= Depreciation 143.5 137.6 1324
. Taxes, other than income taxes 147.3 109.5 125.5
Mercury-related costs (recoveries), net (17.8) (29.0) (12.2)
Property sale gains (4) 4.1) 3.9
Shipping 2495 244.8 211.2
““““““ Other energy ventures 88.6 50.5 36.9
- Corporate and eliminations (50.2) (8.1) 2.6
..... 2,473.3 1,670.9 2,147.1
po— Operating income 189.4 226.5 219.2
e Equity investment income (loss) 15.3 (5.8) 4
Other income (expense), net 2.0 3.4 7.6
Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized 373 38.5 46.0
Income before income taxes and cumulative
effect of accounting change 169.4 185.6 181.2
Income taxes 59.6 57.6 59.1
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change 109.8 128.0 122.1
S Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of
$3.0 income tax benefit 4.5) - -
— Net income 105.3 128.0 1221
e Dividends on preferred stock 1 2 3
Earnings applicable to common stock $ 105.2 $ 127.8 $ 121.8
— Average shares of common stock outstanding
s Basic 44.0 44.1 45.1
e Diluted 44.2 443 452
Earnings per average share of common stock
Basic
Before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 2.49 $ 2.90 $ 2.70
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax (.10) - -
S 2.39 $ 2.90 $ 2.70
Diluted
Before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 2.48 $ 2.88 $ 2.69
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax (.10) - -
= 3 2.38 $ 2.88 $ 2.69

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(millions)

Year ended December 31 -
2003 2002 2001 ;
Operating activities -
Net income $ 105.3 $ 128.0 $ 122.1 ;
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flow
provided from operating activities:

Depreciation 161.7 155.0 148.8 -
Deferred income tax expense 132.6 68.1 21.6 -
Cumulative effect of accounting change 4.5 - - o
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 1.9) (5.4) (5.1)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, less allowances (11.2) (116.4) 308.5
Gas in storage (195.6) (8.9) (9.3)
Deferred/accrued gas costs (20.3) (40.9) 183.7
Prepaid pension costs - (12.8) 32.0) -
Other assets 13.9 (70.8) 204 -
Accounts payable (164.6) 101.2 (206.5) -
Accrued mercury-related costs .5 (13.6) (41.0) -
Other liabilities (23.2) 77.2 (19.9)
Other (12.3) 7.6 -
Net cash flow (used for) provided from operating activities (12.6) 268.3 491.3
— Investing activities
Capital expenditures (181.3) (192.5) (185.7)
Net decrease (increase) in short-term investments 7.2) 8.3 88 00m
Purchase of equity investments (12.7) 12.7) (15.1) ‘
Loans to joint ventures - (64.4) (30.1) -
~ Repayments from joint ventures 8.3 874 -
w Investment in joint ventures - (16.5) -
= Business acquisitions (-4) (10.2) (4.9)
Net proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3.5 8.8 6.4
Other 3.8 2.4 2
E Net cash flow used for investing activities (186.0) (189.2) (220.4) -
? Financing activities -
3 Net proceeds from issuing long-term debt 147.8 49.9 2472 ]
3 Disbursements to retire long-term debt (152.5) - (279.5) ‘
E Short-term borrowings (repayments), net 260.0 38.0 (165.0)
3 Dividends paid (81.8) (80.7) (78.8)
a Disbursements to reacquire stock 2.3) (26.5) (46.3)
> Other 2.5 1.4 2.8 -
o Net cash flow provided from (used for) financing activities 173.7 (17.9) (319.6)
5 Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (24.9) 61.2 (48.7)
E Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 75.2 14.0 62.7 -
: Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 50.3 3 75.2 $ 14.0
Supplemental information
Income taxes paid (refunded), net $ (73.3) $ 2.4 $ 26.7
Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized 41.1 34.6 46.9

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
(millions)
December 31
2003 2002
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 50.3 $ 752
Short-term investments, at cost which approximates market 329 25.7
Receivables, less allowances of $21.2 and $16.9, respectively 476.8 467.4
Gas in storage 236.0 523
Deferred income taxes 66.8 349
Cther 53.1 522
915.9 707.7
Property, plant and equipment, at cost
Gas distribution 3,694.8 3,558.1
Shipping 296.6 309.1
Other 8.1 5.6
3,999.5 3,872.8
Less accumulated depreciation 1,515.3 1,451.0
2,484.2 2,421.8
Prepaid pension costs 177.1 177.1
Other assets 220.0 217.8
$ 3,797.2 $ 3,524.4
Liabilities and Capitalization
Current liabilities
Long-term obligations due within one year $ - $ 100.0
Short-term borrowings 575.6 315.0
Accounts payable 385.4 556.3
Accrued gas costs 47.0 673
Accrued dividends payable 20.5 20.3
Other 40.8 39.7
1,068.7 1,098.6
Deferred credits and other liabilities
Accrued removal costs 670.0 625.0
Deferred income taxes 561.4 386.1
Regulatory income tax liability 48.4 62.2
Unamortized investment tax credits 35.6 37.5
Other 161.6 186.1
1,477.0 1,296.9
Capitalization
Long-term obligations
Long-term bonds and notes 495.1 396.2
Mandatorily redeemable preferred stock 1.8 -
496.9 396.2
Mandatorily redeemable preferred stock - 4.3
Common equity 754.6 728.4
1,251.5 1,128.9
S 3,797.2 $ 3,524.4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Capitalization
(millions, except share data)

December 31 -

2003 2002
First Mortgage Bonds
5.75% Series due 2003 3 - $ 50.0
5.55% Series due 2006 50.0 50.0
5.875% Series due 2008 75.0 75.0
5.37% Series due 2009 50.0 50.0
6.625% Series due 2011 75.0 75.0
7.20% Series due 2016 50.0 50.0
5.80% Series due 2023 50.0 -
7.375% Series due 2027 - 50.0
6.58% Series due 2028 50.0 50.0 -
5.90% Series due 2032 50.0 - :
5.90% Series due 2033 50.0 -
500.0 450.0 -
Less: Amount due within one year - 50.0 ;
Unamortized debt discount, net of premium 4.9 3.8 -

495.1 39.6 % 396.2 35.1 % -

Long-term notes

Note payable due in 2003 at variable interest rate - 50.0 -
Less amount due within one year - 50.0 |

Mandatorily redeemable preferred and preference stock
Cumulative, $50 par value, 1,600,000 preferred
shares authorized; and cumulative, without par
value, 20,000,000 preference shares authorized
(35,944 and 84,857 shares of redeemabie
preferred stock, 4.48% and 5.00% series,
outstanding, respectively) 1.8 1 4.3 4

Lidbiidi

Common equity
Commeon stock, $2.50 par value, 160,000,000 shares
authorized (2,628,961 and 4,345,417 shares reserved
for conversion and other purposes, and 44,040,390

il |

sz did

and 44,011,206 shares outstanding, respectively) 110.1 110.0
Paid-in capital 3.6 1.2
Retained earnings 647.1 623.8
4 Unearned compensation (.2) (.3)
= Accumulated other comprehensive income
= Cash flow hedges (4.3) 4.9
= Minimum pension liability (1.5) 1.4
E Foreign currency translation adjustment (2) -
3 (6.0) (6.3)

754.6 60.3 728.4 64.5

i

$ 1,251.5 1000 % $ 1,128.9 100.0 % =

i

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Common Equity
(millioms, except per share data)

Year ended December 31

2003 2002 2001

Common stock

Balance at beginning of year $ 116.0 $ 1110 $ 1137

Issued and converted stock A1 5 5

Reacquired and cancelled stock - (1.5) (3.2)

Balance at end of year 110.1 110.0 111.0
Paid-in capital

Balance at beginning of year 1.2 - -

Issued and converted stock 2.3 6.8 1.5

Reacquired and cancelled stock Nl (5.6) (1.5)

Balance at end of year 3.6 1.2 -
Retained earnings

Balance at beginning of year 623.8 593.5 592.4

Net income 105.3 128.0 1221

Dividends on common stock ($1.86, $1.84 and $1.76

per share, respectively) {81.9) LD (75.1)

Dividends on preferred stock ¢1): (2) (3)

Reacquired and cancelled stock - (16.4) (41.6)

Balance at end of year 647.1 623.8 593.5
Unearned compensation

Balance at beginning of year 3) - -

Issued restricted stock - (4 -

Restricted stock amortization il 1 -

Balance at end of year (2) (.3) -
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

Balance at beginning of year (6.3) (.3) (9)

Other comprehensive income (loss) 3 (6.0) .6

Balance at end of year ‘ {6.0) (6.3) (3)

3 754.6 $ 7284 $ 7042

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(millions)
Year ended December 31
2003 2002 2001

Net income $ 105.3 $ 1280 $ 1221
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax

Gain (loss) on cash flow hedges, net (17.4) (8.5) 1.3

Reclassifications to net income 18.3 (.9) (.1)

Decrease (increase) to minimum pension liability (1) (.6) (3)

Foreign currency translation adjustment (.2) - A

.6 (10.0) 1.0

Related income tax expense {.3) 4.0 (4)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax ] (6.0) 6
Comprehensive income $ 105.6 $ 1220 $ 1227

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. ACCOUNTING POLICITES

Consolidatiom. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Nicor Inc. (Nicor) and its
subsidiaries. Nicor’s key subsidiaries are described in Note 13 Business Segment and Geographic
Information. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of estimates. The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates that affect reported
amounts. Actual results could differ from those estimates, and such differences could be material.
Accounting estimates requiring significant management judgment involve accruals for legal, regulatory,
environmental and tax loss contingencies, the identification and valuation of derivative instruments,
unbilled revenues, postretirement benefits, income taxes, potential asset impairments, and the allowance

for doubtful accounts.

Reclassifications. Certain reclassifications have been made to conform the prior years’ financial
statements to the current year’s presentation.

Cash and cash equivalents. The company considers investments of domestic subsidiaries purchased
with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Regulatory assets and liabilities. Nicor Gas, a wholly owned subsidiary of Nicor, is regulated by the
Illinois Commerce Commission (ICC), which establishes the rules and regulations governing utility rates
and services in Illinois. The company applies accounting standards that recognize the economic effects of
rate regulation and, accordingly, has recorded regulatory assets and liabilities. The company had
regulatory assets (liabilities) at December 31 as follows (in millions):

2003 2002
Accrued removal costs $ (678.0) $ (625.0)
Accrued gas costs (47.0) (67.3)
Regulatory income tax liability (48.4) (62.2)
Unamortized loss on reacquired debt 20.9 19.0
Deferred environmental costs 37.8 54.7

S (707.5) $ (680.8)

Estimated accrued removal costs were classified as a noncurrent liability at December 31, 2003 and 2002.
See Note 3 Other Accounting Changes — Asset retirement obligations. The unamortized loss on
reacquired debt and deferred environmental costs are classified in cther noncurrent assets.

Equity investments. The company invests in several partnerships and limited liability companies that
are accounted for under the equity method. Related investment balances classified as noncurrent assets at
December 31, 2003 and 2002 were $108.9 million and $93.3 million, respectively, including $83.2
million and $70.3 million, respectively, related to Triton Container Investments LLC (Triton), a cargo

container leasing company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continved)

Derivative instruments. At Nicor Gas, derivative instruments are utilized primarily in the procurement
of natural gas for customers. Realized gains or losses on such derivatives are included in the cost of gas
delivered and are passed directly through to customers, subject to ICC review, having no direct impact on
earnings. Unrealized changes in the fair value of these derivative instruments are deferred as regulatory
assets or liabilities and classified as deferred or accrued gas costs, respectively.

At times, Nicor Gas enters into futures contracts, options and swap agreements to reduce the earnings
impact of certain forecasted operating costs arising from fluctuations in natural gas prices. To the extent
that hedge accounting is elected, unrealized changes in the fair market value of these derivative
instruments are reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income or loss. When the
forecasted expenses are incurred, the accumulated other comprehensive income or loss component is
reclassified to operating and maintenance expense.

Through the first quarter of 2003, Nicor Gas held weather-related swap agreements to limit the earnings
impact of weather fluctuations. The benefits or losses on these agreements were recorded in operating
revenues.

Derivative instruments and other energy-related contracts are used by Nicor’s wholesale natural gas
marketing business, Nicor Enerchange, to hedge price risk associated with inventories of natural gas,
fixed-price purchase and sale agreements and risk related to Nicor Solutions” utility-bill management
products. Through 2002, this business had recorded substantially all of its portfolioc of derivative
instruments, other energy-related contracts and physical inventories at fair value. Fair values were
determined from quoted market prices and other external sources, where available, or were estimated
using internal models. Estimates from internal modeis were not material to Nicor’s financial statements.
As noted in Note 2 Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting, effective January 1, 2003, Nicor
Enerchange no longer records substantially all of its portfolio at fair value. As a result, changes in
estimated fair vaiues may have a material impact on Nicor’s financial statements.

Nicor periodically utilizes derivative instruments to reduce interest rate risk associated with the
anticipated issuance of debt. Changes in the fair value of these derivative instruments are reported as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive income. Upon the issuance of the debt, the amount
deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income is amortized to interest expense over the life of the
debt instrument. At December 31, 2003, the cash flow hedges component of accumulated other
comprehensive loss of $4.3 million, reported net of $2.8 million of related income tax benefits,
represented mostly losses on financial derivatives designated as hedges of interest payments on 30-year
bonds issued by Nicor Gas in December 2003. These losses are being amortized to interest expense over
the life of the bonds.

The company generally classifies cash flows from derivatives in the same category as cash flows from the
related hedged item.

Credit risk. Nicor’s major subsidiaries have diversified customer bases and prudent credit policies
which mitigate customer receivable and derivative counterparty credit risk.
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Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements (continued)

Operating revenues and gas costs. Gas distribution revenues are recorded when gas is delivered to
customers. In accordance with ICC regulations, the cost of gas delivered is charged to customers without
markup, although the timing of cost recovery can vary, and is subject to ICC review. Temporary a
undercollections and overcollections of gas costs are deferred or accrued as a regulatory asset or liability "
with a corresponding decrease or increase to cost of gas, respectively.

In the shipping segment, revenues and related delivery costs are recorded at the time vessels depart from
port. While alternative methods of recognizing shipping revenue and related costs exist, the difference -
between those methods and the company’s policy does not have a material impact on financial results.

Repair and maintenance expense. Nicor records expense for repair and maintenance costs as incurred,
with one exception - Tropical Shipping uses the accrue-in-advance method for planned major
maintenance related to dry-docking and major repairs of its owned vessels. These costs are generally =
accrued over a three-year period. i

Legal defense costs. The company accrues future legal defense costs associated with loss contingencies
in the period in which it is determined that such costs are probable of being incurred and are reasonably
estimable.

Depreciation. Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over estimated useful lives on a straight-
line basis. The gas distribution composite depreciation rate is 4.1 percent, which includes estimated
future removal costs. The estimated useful lives of shipping-segment vessels range from 20 to 25 years.

Revenue taxes. Nicor Gas classifies revenue taxes billed to customers as operating reventues and related
taxes due as operating expenses. Revenue taxes included in operating expense for 2003, 2002 and 2001
were $130.9 million, $92.5 million and $108.9 million, respectively.

Income taxes. Deferred income taxes are provided for temporary differences between the tax basis of an
asset or liability and its reported amount in the financial statements. In the gas distribution segment,
investment tax credits and regulatory income tax liabilities are amortized to income over the lives of ,
related properties. In the shipping segment, the company has recorded a $47 million deferred income tax N
liability associated with foreign earnings it may repatriate. An income tax liability of §7 million has not :
been provided on approximately $20 million of cumulative undistributed foreign earnings through

December 31, 2003, which are considered by management to be indefinitely invested in foreign

operations.

Stock options and awards. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (FAS) No. 123, Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation, encourages, but does not require, entities to adopt the fair value method
of accounting for stock-based compensation plans. The fair value method would require the amortization
of the fair value of stock-based compensation at the date of grant over the related vesting period. Nicor
continues to apply the intrinsic value method of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting -
Jor Stock Issued to Employees, for awards granted under its stock-based compensation plans. The

infrinsic value method does not require compensation expense to be recognized based on Nicor’s current

option terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statememnts (continued)

As required by FAS 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and Disclosure - an
amendrment of FASB Statement No. 123, if compensation expense for the stock options had been
recognized based upon the fair value method, the impact on the company’s net income and earnings per
share would have been as follows (in millions, except per share data):

2003 | 2002 2001
Net income
As reported $ 10s5.3 $ 128.0 $ 1221
Less: Total stock-based employee compensation
expense determined under the fair value.
method for ali awards, net of tax i 6 5
Pro forma $ 104.6 $ 1274 $ 1216
Earnings per share
Basic — As reported $ 239 $ 290 $ 2.70
Basic — Pro forma 2.38 2.88 2.69
Diluted — As reported 2.38 2.88 2.69
Diluted — Pro forma 2.37 2.87 2.68

2., CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING

Effective January 1, 2003, Nicor’s wholesale natural gas marketing business, Nicor Enerchange, began
applying accrual accounting rather than fair value accounting to gas in storage and certain energy-related
contracts, such as storage and transportation agreements. The change in accounting method relates to a
rescission of Emerging Issues Task Force Consensus No. 98-10, Accounting for Contracts Involved in
Energy Trading and Risk Management Activities, and a prohibition against recording inventory at fair
value. Effective with the change, Nicor recorded a $4.5 million cumulative effect loss from the change in
accounting principle, which was net of $3.0 million in income tax benefits. Pro forma results for the
years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 had the new method been applied could not be reasonably
determined and are therefore not presented.

3. OTHER ACCOUNTING CHANGES

Asset retirement obligations. In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
issued FAS 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations. This standard requires entities to record
the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period in which the obligation is
incurred. When the liability is initially recorded, the entity capitalizes the cost by increasing the carrying
amount of the related long-lived asset. Over time, the liability is accreted to its present value, and the
capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. This standard became effective on
January 1, 2003.

The obligation of retiring gas distribution, transmission, storage and certain general plant assets at Nicor
Gas meets the definition of a legal obligation under FAS 143. However, the company has determined that
due to the indefinite life of such assets a fair value liability is generally not measurable. On January 1,
2003, a $3.5 million asset retirement obligation for the expected replacement of inside mercury regulators
was recorded at Nicor Gas. Certain costs associated with the retirement of other items at Nicor
companies, including polychlorinated biphenyls, underground storage tanks and asbestos abatement, are
determined to be immaterial or cannot be measured at this time.
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Nates to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Nicor Gas continues its practice of accruing for future removal costs through depreciation, subject to cost-
of-service utility rate regulation, even when a legal asset retirement obligation does not exist under FAS
143 or its fair value cannot be measured. Through December 31, 2003, the company had accrued and
recovered about $670 million associated with the future removal of these long-lived assets. During 2003,
in conjunction with the adoption of FAS 143, Nicor Gas reclassified accrued removal costs from
accumulated depreciation to noncurrent liabilities.

In late February 2004, new guidance was issued to the utility industry indicating that accrued future
removal costs for periods prior to 2003 must also be reclassified from accumulated depreciation to
noncurrent liabilities. As a resuit, Nicor’s balance sheets at December 31, 2002 and 2001 reflect the
reclassification of $625 million and $575 million respectively of such costs. This reclassification had no
impact on previously reported comimon equity or results of operations.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. In April 2003, the FASB issued FAS 149, Amendment
of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. FAS 149 amends and addresses
financial accounting and reporting for derivative instruments under FAS 133. The Statement was
generally effective prospectively for contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003. The only
impact of adoption on July 1, 2003, was that certain natural gas commodity contracts at Nicor Gas no
longer qualify for the normal purchases and sales exception and must be recorded at fair value, with an
offsetting regulatory asset or liability classified as deferred or accrued gas costs. The application of this
standard has not had a material impact on the company’s financial position or results of operations.

Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments. In May 2003, the FASB issued FAS 150, Accounting
Jjor Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity. FAS 150 requires
certain freestanding financial instruments, such as mandatorily redeemable preferred stock, to be initially
measured at fair value and classified as liabilities. The provisions of FAS 150 were effective for Nicor
beginning July 1, 2003. Upon adoption, Nicor prospectively reclassified approximately $2 million of
redeemable preferred stock to a liability and related dividends to interest expense. The application of this
standard did not have a material impact on the company’s financial position or results of operations.

4. CONSOLIDATION OF VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

In December 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation 46(R), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities
(FIN 46R). FIN 46R addresses the application of Accounting Research Bulletin 51, Consolidated
Financial Statements, to certain entities in which equity investors do not have the characteristics of a
controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities
without additional subordinated financial support. The company believes that FIN 46R will have no
impact on its financial position or results of operations.

5. ACCRUED UNBILLED REVENUES
Receivables include accrued unbiiled revenues of $140 million and $142.9 million at December 31, 2003

and 2002, respectively, related almost entirely to gas distribution operations. Nicor Gas accrues revenues
for estimated deliveries to customers from the date of their last bill until the balance sheet date.

6. GASIN STORAGE

Gas in storage at December 31 inciuded inventory of the following subsidiaries (in millions):
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2003 2002
Nicor Gas $ 209.1 $ 18.6
Nicor Enerchange 26.9 33.7

$ 236.0 $ 52.3

Gas distribution segment inventory is carried at cost on a last-in, first-out (LIFO) basis. Based on the
average cost of gas purchased in December 2003 and 2002, the estimated replacement cost of inventory at
December 31, 2003 and 2002 exceeded the LIFO cost by $341.6 million and $311.2 million, respectively.
During 2002, Nicor Gas liquidated LIFO layers at an average cost of $1.32 per Mcf. The company’s
average purchase price in 2002 was $2.01 per Mcf higher than the average LIFO liguidation rate.
Applying LIFO cost in valuing the liquidation, as opposed to using the average gas purchase rate,
decreased 2002 cost of gas by $20.3 million. As the cost of gas including inventory costs is charged to
customers without markup, the amount had no impact on net income.

At December 31, 2003 Nicor Enerchange carried its inventory of natural gas at the lower of weighted-
average cost or market, and at December 31, 2002 it was carried at fair value.

7. SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM DEBT

In December 2003, Nicor Gas issued the following First Mortgage Bonds: $50 million due in 2023 at
5.80%, $50 million due in 2032 at 5.90%, and $50 million due in 2033 at 5.90%. Additionally, in
December 2003, Nicor Gas redeemed $50 million of 7.375% First Mortgage Bonds due in 2027. In June
2003, Nicor Gas retired $50 million of 5.75% First Mortgage Bonds due in 2003.

In April 2003, Nicor Gas refinanced $50 million of 3% unsecured notes due in April 2003 with $50
million of 1.6% unsecured notes due and paid in October 2003.

The company maintains short-term line of credit agreements with major domestic and foreign banks. At
December 31, 2003, these agreements, which serve as backup for the issuance of commercial paper,
allowed for borrowings of up to $1 billion through March 2004 and $500 million thereafter through
September 2004. Commitment fees paid in advance totaling $2.9 million are being amortized over the
respective terms of the agreements as interest expense.

The company had $575 million and $315 million of commercial paper outstanding with a weighted
average interest rate of 1.1% and 1.6% at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Under the company’s 2003/2004 short-term line of credit agreements, if (1) Nicor’s or Nicor Gas’ ratio of
consolidated indebtedness to capitalization (including short-term debt) exceeds 65% at the end of the first,
second or third fiscal quarter, or 70% at December 31, 2003, or (2) Nicor’s or Nicor Gas’ twelve-months-
ended interest coverage ratio is less than 3 to 1 at the end of any fiscal quarter during the term of the
credit agreements, banks representing two-thirds of the commitments may declare any amounts due
immediately payable and/or terminate the commitments to make advances to the company. The company
is in compliance with these covenants at December 31, 2003.

Bank cash balances averaged about $4 million during 2003, which partially compensated for the cost of
maintaining accounts and other banking services. Such demand balances may be withdrawn at any time.

First Mortgage Bonds are secured by liens on substantially ail gas distribution property.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Interest expense is reported net of amounts capitalized. The interest expense capitalized for the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $.3 million, $.5 million and $1.1 million, respectively.

8. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The recorded amount of short-term investments and short-term borrowings approximates fair value
because of the short maturity of the instruments. Long-term: debt outstanding, including current
maturities, is recorded at the principal balance outstanding. The principal balance of Nicor’s First
Mortgage Bonds outstanding at December 31, 2003 and 2002 was $500 million and $450 million, ‘
respectively. Based on quoted market interest rates, the fair value of the company’s First Mortgage
Bonds outstanding, including current maturities, was approximately $530 million and $480 million at -
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

9. INCCME TAXES

The components of income tax expense (benefit) are presented below (in millions):

hl i H ono g tx al“l; ‘l N h [

2003 2002 2001
Current
Federal $ (55.0) $ 62) § 316
E State (16.4) (.1 7.6
3 (71.4) 9.3) 39.2 ,
; Deferred -
E Federal 99.8 61.8 22.0 ;
, State 32.8 6.3 (4)
E 132.6 68.1 21.6
Amortization of investment tax credits, net 2.0) (1.4 2.1
Foreign taxes 4 2 4
Income tax expense (benefit), net $ 596 $ 576  $ 59.1

The temporary differences which gave rise to the net deferred tax iiability at December 31, 2003 and
2002, were as follows (in millions):

A
i
=
A
=i
N
-
|
i
-
-
=
-
|

2003 2002
Deferred tax liabilities
. Property, plant and equipment $§ 4036 § 2397 -
E Investment in partnerships 107.9 88.6 §
; Investment in foreign subsidiaries 46.9 477  u
. Employee benefits 22.1 28.7
> Other 26.9 21.6
E 607.4 4263
3 Deferred tax assets =
E Alternative minimum tax 35.7 1.6 i
3 Unamortized investment tax credits 22.8 24.0 a
Other 54.3 49.5
112.8 75.1

Net deferred tax liability $§ 4946 § 3512
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continned)

g— The effective combined federal and state income tax rate was 35 percent, 31 percent and 33 percent in

—— 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Differences between federal income taxes computed using the
- statutory rate and reported income tax expense are shown below (in millions):
- 2003 2002 2001
] Federal income taxes using statutory rate $ 593 §$ 649 § 63.4
““““ ] State income taxes, net - 6.6 1.1 4.7
‘ Tax credits (4.5) 4.5} 4.5)
Other, net (1.8) 3.9) 4.5)
Income tax expense (benefit), net $ 56 $ 576 % 59.1

In the fourth quarter of 2003, Nicor received an income tax refund of approximately $100 million
attributable to a tax loss carryback associated with a change in tax accounting methods, subject to future
Internal Revenue Service review and approval. The company’s 33 percent effective income tax rate in
w 2001 declined to 31 percent in 2002 due to positive adjustments resulting from the completion of an
income tax audit and rose to 35 percent in 2003 due to an increase in tax expense relating to adjustments
of deferred tax accounts.

19. POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

Nicor Gas maintains a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering substantially alt employees
hired prior to 1998. Pension benefits are based on years of service and highest average salary for
management employees and job level for unionized employees. The benefit obligation related to
collectively bargained benefits considers the company’s past practice of regular benefit increases to
reflect current wages. Nicor Gas also provides health care and life insurance benefits to eligible retired
employees under a plan that includes a limit on the company’s share of cost for most future retirees. The
company’s accrued postretirement benefit costs have historically been considered in rate proceedings.

The following tables set forth the changes in the plans’ benefit obligations and assets, and reconciles the
October 1 funded status of the plans to the prepaid (accrued) benefit cost recorded on the balance sheet at
December 31 (in millions):

Pension benefits Other benefits
2003 2002 2003 2002

Change inm benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning

of period $ 2520 $ 2375 $ 1693 $ 1419
Service cost 7.4 7.2 2.0 1.5
Interest cost 16.3 16.5 11.1 9.9
Actuarial loss 21.3 14.0 27.7 26.2
Participant contributions - - i 1.3
Plan amendments - 3 (26.7) -

— Benefits paid (23.9) (23.5) (10.5) (14.5)

S Benefit obligation at end of period $ 2731 § 252.0 $ 1736 § 1693
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Pension benefits Other benefits
2003 2002 2003 2002

Change in plan assets -
Fair value of plan assets at beginning :

of period $§ 3379 § 3997 $ 131 % 19.7
Actual gain (loss) on plan assets 69.6 (38.3) 2.2 (1.3)
Employer contributions - - 6.2 79
Participant contributions - - g 1.3
Benefits paid (23.9) (23.5) (10.5) (14.5)
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 383.6 337.9 11.7 13.1
Funded status 110.5 85.9 (161.9) (156.2)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 62.3 86.3 84.4 60.7
Unrecognized prior service cost 4.3 49 - -
Unrecognized transition obligation - - 1.2 30.9
Other (1.5) (3.3)

Recognized prepaid (accrued) benefitcost § 177.1 $ 177.1 $ (77.8) $ (67.9)

The accumulated benefit obligation for pension benefits, a measure which excludes the effect of salary
and wage increases, was $233.1 million and $213 million at October 1, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The

accrued benefit cost for heaith care and life insurance benefits is classified as an other noncurrent liability.

In 2003, the company amended the retiree health care benefit plan to improve consistency of benefits
among participant groups and reduce the company’s share of plan costs effective January 1, 2004.

About one-fourth of the net periodic benefit cost or credit related to these plans has been capitalized as a
cost of constructing gas distribution facilities and the remainder is included in gas distribution operating
and maintenance expense. Net periodic benefit cost (credit) included the following components (in
millions):

Pension benefits Other benefits
2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
Service cost § 74 $ 72 § 65 $ 2.0 $ 15 § 1.2
Interest cost 16.3 16.5 16.4 11.1 9.9 84
Expected return on plan assets (28.7) (36.0) (44.3) (1.2) (1.8) 2.1
Recognized net actuarial (gain) loss 4.3 - 7.4 2.9 1.0 -
Amortization of unrecognized
transition (asset) obligation - (1.0) 3.3) 3.1 3.1 3.1
Amortization of prior service cost g 5 .6 - - -
Net periodic benefit cost (credit) $ - $(128) $(320) §$ 179 $ 137 § 106

Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at October 1 included the following:

Pension benefits Other benefits
2003 2002 2003 2002
Discount rate 6.00% 6.75% 6.00% 6.75%

Rate of compensation increase 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the years ended December 31 inciuded the
following:

Pension benefits Other benefits
2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
Discount rate 6.75% 7.25% 7.75% 6.75% 7.25% 7.75%
Expected return on assets 8.75 925 9.25 8.75 9.25 9.25
Rate of compensation increase 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00

Nicor Gas establishes its expected return-on-asset assumption by considering projected 20-year returns
for each investment asset category. Projected returns are calculated by an independent firm via a
probability-based model. The company has elected to apply this assumption to the fair value of plan
assets, rather than to a rolling-average fair value, in calculating the expected return on plan assets

component of net periodic benefit cost.

Assumptions used to determine other benefit obligations at October 1 were as follows:

2003 2002
Health care cost trend rate 9.5% 11.0%
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline (the ultimate rate) 5.0% 5.0%
Years to reach ultimate rate 4 4

Assumptions used to determine other net benefit cost for the years ended December 31 were as follows:

2003 2002 2001
Health care cost trend rate — Pre-65 11.0% 10.0% 6.5%
Health care cost trend rate — Post-65 11.0% 7.5% 5.0%
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed tc decline (the ultimate rate) 50% 5.0% 5.0%
Years to reach ultimate rate 4 4 3

Assumed health care cost trend rates can have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health
care plans. A one-percentage-point change in the assumed health care cost trend rates would have the

following effects (in millions):
One-percent

Increase Decrease
Effect on total of service and interest cost components $ 14 3 (1.2)
Effect on benefit obligation 18.8 (15.8)

The recently enacted Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the Act)
provides a prescription drug benefit as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of certain retiree health care
benefit plans. As allowed by FASB Staff Position No. 106-1, Nicor Gas has elected to defer reflecting the
effects of the Act on the accumulated benefit obligation and net periodic postretirement benefit cost in
these financial statements and accompanying notes. The company’s deferral election expires upon the
occurrence of any event that triggers a required remeasurement of plan assets or obligations, or upon the
issuance of specific authoritative guidance on the accounting for the federal subsidy. Such guidance is
pending and when issued could require the company to adjust previcusly reported information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

The company’s investment objective relating to pension plan assets is to have a high probability of
meeting its obligations without additional cash contributions. The company’s investment strategy is to
maintain an asset mix near its target asset allocation and to rebalance the portfolio monthly if the actual
allocation deviates from the target by two or more percentage points. The foliowing table sets forth the
target allocation and actual percentage of pian assets by asset category:

Target Percentage of Plan Assets
Allocation at October 1
Asset Category 2004 2003 2002
Equity securities 70% 70% 69%
Debt securities 30 29 31
Real estate and other - 1 -
Total 100% 100% 100%

The company does not expect to contripute to its pension plan in 2004 and expects to contribute about
$10 million to its other postretirement benefit plan in 2004.

Nicor also has a separate unfunded supplemental retirement plan and provides unfunded postretirement
health care and life insurance benefits to about 75 employees of discontinued businesses. These plans are
noncontributory with defined benefits. Plan expenses were $1.4 million, $.9 million and $.8 million in
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The projected benefit obligation associated with these plans was
$11.9 million and $11.0 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The company also sponsors defined contribution plans covering substantially all domestic employees.
These plans provide for employer matching contributions. The total cost of these plans was $6 million,
$5.8 million and $5.3 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

11. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Nicor has a long-term incentive compensation plan that permits the granting of stock options, restricted
stock and alternate stock rights to key executives and managerial employees, as well as a stock deferral
plan and an employee stock purchase plan.

Long-term incentive compensation plan. The company may grant options for up to 3.5 million shares
and has granted options on 2.7 million shares through December 31, 2003. The stock option exercise
price equals the stock’s market price on the date of grant. Options vest after one year, generally become
exercisable after three years, and expire after ten years.
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A summary of stock option activity is presented below:

e Number Weighted average
F of shares exercise price
~ Options outstanding at:

e December 31, 2000 : 902,100 § 32.10
Granted 173,500 36.81

- Exercised (208.800) 27.46

— Cancelled (2,500) 36.82

— December 31, 2001 864,300 34.15

g Granted 181,500 45.05
i Exercised (144,800) 30.25

= Cancelled (18,400) 40.43

i December 31, 2002 882,600 36.90
4 Granted 349,600 27.17
B Exercised - -

Cancelled (74,900) 36.95
December 31, 2003 1,157,300 33.96
Options exercisable at:
December 31, 2001 322,800 S 32.65
& December 31, 2002 334,400 35.66

December 31, 2003 513,000 34.47

= Exercise price ranges for stock options outstanding at December 31, 2003 are as follows:

. Weighted Weighted

— average average
Range of Number exercise remaining

— exercise price of shares price contractual life
o $24.63 - $34.10 658,500 § 29.18 8.0
36.44 — 4505 498,800 40.27 7.4

; The weighted-average fair value of options granted in 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $4.32, $6.65 and $5.01,
respectively. The fair value of each option was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing mode! with the following assumptions:

2003 2002 2001
Expected volatility 34.7% 21.1% 23.5%
‘ Dividend yield 6.9% 4.1% 5.4%
Risk-free interest rate 2.7% 4.7% 4.6%
Expected period outstanding (years) 4 4 4

The computation of Nicor’s diluted earnings per share inciudes the potentially dilutive effect of issuing
additional shares due to employees exercising stock options. However, when option exercise prices are
above the stock prices, those options are not considered in the earnings per share computation, as to do so
= would be anti-dilutive. As a result, Nicor’s earnings per share computation excludes the potentially
- dilutive effect related to about 508,800 options, 371,500 options and 132,300 options in 2003, 2002, and
2001, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

There were 9,000 shares of restricted stock and no alternate stock rights outstanding at December 31,
2003.

Stock deferral plan. Officers may elect to defer up to 50 percent of their annual bonus or long-term
incentive award in exchange for stock to be received at a future date. No additional compensation
expense is recorded since the number of shares is determined based upon market value on the deferral
date. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, Nicor had future commitments to distribute about 88,500
shares and 78,500 shares, respectively, to participants of the plan.

Employee stock purchase plan. Under the employee stock purchase plan, the company may sell up to
1.5 million shares of common stock to its employees and has sold about 1 million shares through
December 31, 2003. Under the terms of this plan, eligible employees may purchase shares at 90 percent
of the stock’s market price. The company sold about 30,500 shares, 28,100 shares and 25,400 shares to
employees in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The weighted-average market value of shares sold in
2003, 2002 and 2001 was $32.30, $34.82 and $37.80, respectively.

12. COMMON AND PREFERRED STOCK

Voting. Each share of common and preferred stock, regardless of class, entitles the holder to one vote as
to matters considered at the company’s annual meeting of shareholders.

Shareholder rights plan. Under a shareholder rights plan, shareholders are assigned one right for each
share of Nicor common stock held. The rights will be exercisable only if a person acquires, or announces
a tender offer that would result in ownership of, 10 percent or more of Nicor’s common stock. If a person
acquires beneficial ownership of 10 percent or more of Nicor’s common stock, all holders of rights other
than the acquiring person will be entitled to purchase Nicor common stock at a 50 percent discount from
the market price. Nicor may redeem the rights at $.01 per right at any time before someone becomes a 10
percent beneficial owner. The rights expire on September 30, 2007.

Changes in common shares. Changes in common shares outstanding are summarized below (in
millions):

2003 2002 2001
Beginning of year 44.0 44.4 45.5
Issued and converted - 2 2
Reacquired and cancelled - (.6) (1.3)
End of year 44.0 44.0 44 .4

Through common stock repurchase programs, Nicor purchased and retired .4 million and 1.1 million
shares in 2002 and 2001, respectively. There were no purchases under the program in 2003.

Dividend and other restrictioms. Nicor has no contractual or regulatory restrictions on the payment of
dividends. Nicor Gas is restricted by regulation in the amount it can dividend or loan to affiliates.
Dividends are allowed only to the extent of Nicor Gas’ retained earnings balance. The balance of cash
advances from Nicor Gas to an affiliate at any time may not exceed the unused balance of funds actually
available to that affiliate under its existing bank credit agreements or its commercial paper facilities with
unaffiliated third parties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

13. BUSINESS SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

Nicor is a holding company that operates primarily in two separately managed reportable segments: gas
distribution and shipping. The gas distribution segment (Nicor Gas), Nicor’s principal business, serves
over two miilion customers in a service territory that encompasses most of the northern third of Illinois,
excluding the city of Chicago. The shipping segment (Tropical Shipping) transports containerized freight
between Florida, Canada, the Bahamas and the Caribbean region.

Nicor’s other business operating segments have been combined under the heading “Other energy
ventures.” These other segments operate primarily in the Midwest region and inciude businesses that
market energy-related products and services at retail to residential and small business consumers (Nicor
Services and Nicor Solutions) and natural gas at the wholesale level (Nicor Enerchange). Other energy
ventures also include a 50-percent-owned natural gas pipeline joint venture with Natural Gas Pipeline
Company of America (Horizon Pipeline) and a 50-percent-owned retail energy marketing joint venture
with Dynegy Marketing and Trade (Nicor Energy), that disposed of all its customer contracts and ceased
operations in 2003.

Gas distribution revenues include sales and transportation services, as well as revenue taxes, as follows
(in millions);

2003 2002 2001
Sales $ 2,014.8 $ 1,2993 $ 1,802.5
Transportation 148.0 145.3 137.6
Revenue taxes 134.0 953 112.3
Other 54.8 50.8 38.4

§ 23516 $ 1,590.7 § 2,090.8

Tropical Shipping’s vessels are under foreign registry, and its containers are considered instruments of
international trade. Although the majority of its long-lived assets are foreign owned and its revenues are
derived from foreign operations, the functional currency is generally the U.S. dollar.

Corporate operating expenses include unailocated legal and business development costs, and corporate
equity investment income includes results from investments in Triton and low income housing
partnerships.

Nicor management evaluates segment performance based on operating income. Intercompany billing for
goods and services exchanged between segments is based generally upon direct and indirect costs
incurred, but in some instances is based upon the prevailing tariffed or market-based price of the provider.
The majority of intersegment revenues represent Nicor Gas revenues related to customers purchasing the
Fixed Bill utility-bill management product from one of Nicor’s retail affiliates. Under the Fixed Rill
product, the affiliate bills a fixed amount to a customer and in exchange pays the customer’s utility bills
from Nicor Gas. Financial data by business segment is presented on the following page (in millions):
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e Other Corporate
= Gas energy and
= distribution Shipping ventures eliminations  Consolidated
= Operating revenues -
- 2003
p External customers $ 2,300.7 $ 2722 $ 89.8 $ - $ 2,662.7 -
. Intersegmemt 50.9 - 6.7 (57.6) -
i 2,351.6 2722 96.5 (57.6) 2,662.7 -
= 2002 ]
-~ External customers 1,576.8 266.0 54.6 - 1,897.4
— Intersegment 13.9 - 2.3 (16.2) - -
- 1,590.7 266.0 56.9 (16.2) 1,897.4
E 2001
= External customers 2,090.8 230.3 452 - 2,366.3
Intersegment - - (1.5) 1.5 -
2,090.8 2303 437 1.5 2,366.3 -
Operating income (loss)
2003 $ 1662 $ 22.7 $ 7.9 $ (7.4) § 1894
2002 207.0 21.2 6.4 8.1 226.5
2001 1944 19.1 6.8 (1.1 219.2
Equity investment income (Joss) -
2003 $ (L 8 - $ 11.5 ) 39 8 15.3 i
2002 (1 - (7.2) 1.5 (5.8)
2001 8)) . %)) 13 4
e Other income (expense), net
= 2003 $ 1.7 S 8 $ .6 S Ly 3 2.0 3
— 2002 7 12 5 2.4 3.4
= 2001 4.5 2.7 1.0 (.6) 7.6

Interest expense, net of
amounts capitalized

2003 $ 36.8 $ 5 $ 4 $ 4 3 37.3
2002 36.3 5 9 .8 385
2001 452 6 .8 (.6) 46.0
b Inceme taxes
B 2003 $ 48.0 $ 6.0 $ 7.9 $ 23 8 59.6
= 2002 64.3 5.3 (3) (11..7) 57.6 =
3 2001 57.0 5.4 1.6 4.9) 59.1 ‘
Cumulative effect of accounting
change, net of tax
2003 S - $ - $ “45) 3 - S 4.5)
E 2002 - - - - -
2001 - - - - -
i Property, plant and u
3 equipment, net -
E 2003 8§ 2,345.2 § 1333 $ 5.7 $ - $ 2,484.2 i
= 2002 2,273.0 144.4 44 - 2,421.8 * -
- 2001 2,195.7 146.1 1.5 3 2,343.6 * I
= Capital expenditures
2003 $ 1729 L) 5.9 § 2.5 S - $ 1813
2002 169.5 19.6 34 - 192.5
E 2001 149.8 34.8 1.1 - 185.7
3 Depreciation
E 2003 $ 1435 $ 16.9 $ 1.3 $ - $ 1617
2002 137.6 16.9 5 - 155.0
2001 132.4 16.1 3 - 148.8

Y

* See Note 3 - Other Accounting Changes - Asset retirement obligations for further information.

I
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14. EQUITY INVESTMENT INCOME (LOSS)

Equity investment income (loss) included the following (in millions):

2003 2002 2001
Nicor Energy $ 96 $ 92) $ (.9)
Triton 5.5 4.1 3.6
Horizon Pipeline 1.5 1.3 -
All other (1.3) .0) 2.3)
S 153 % (58) $§ 4

i15. OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE), NET

Other income (expense), net included the following (in miilions):

2003 2002 2001
Interest income $ 1.9 $ 2.5 $ 7.3
Other income 1.2 1.8 .8
Other expense (1.1) (9 (.5)

$ 20 % 34 § 7.6

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In May 2002, Horizon Pipeline repaid all construction loans outstanding from Nicor. Horizon Pipeline
charged Nicor Gas $10.4 million and $6.6 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively, for natural gas
transportation under rates that have been accepted by FERC.

Nicor’s investment in Nicor Energy was written off during the third quarter of 2002. In 2003, Nicor
recorded gains of $9.6 million upon the receipt of cash from Nicor Energy. For additional important
developments concerning this investment, refer to Note 19 Contingencies.

In 2002, Nicor Technologies, a wholly owned subsidiary of Nicor, began purchasing engineering services
from EN Engineering, a 50-percent-owned joint venture. EN Engineering charged Nicor Technologies
$4.4 million and $4.6 million for these services in 2003 and 2002, respectively.

17. CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

As of December 31, 2003, Nicor had contractual obligations with payments due as follows (in millions):

Payments due by year

After
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2008 Total
Purchase obligations $ 6354.0 $ 260.1 $ 1173 $ 84.7 $ 80.6 $ 442 $ 1,24009
Long-term debt - - 50.0 - 75.0 375.0 500.0
Operating leases 18.1 14.3 9.7 2.8 23 6.8 54.0
Other long-term obligations 2.7 2.8 2.7 1.7 1.5 1.7 13.1

$ 6748 $ 277.2 $ 1797 $ 892 §1594 $4277 $ 1,808.0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Purchase obligations consist primarily of natural gas transportation and storage contracts, and natural gas
purchase agreements in the gas distribution and wholesale natural gas marketing segments. Purchase
obligations also include obligations to purchase natural gas at future market prices, calculated using
December 31, 2003 NYMEX futures prices.

Operating leases are primarily for vessels, containers and equipment in the shipping segment, and for
office space and equipment in the gas distribution segment. Rental expense under operating leases was
$23.7 million, $23.0 million and $14.6 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

18. GUARANTEES AND INDEMNITIES

Nicor and certain subsidiaries enter into various financial and performance guarantees and indemnities
providing assurance to third parties.

Finaneial guarantees. The company has issued financial guarantees extending through 2007 on behalf
of its wholly owned subsidiaries and other affiliates, guaranteeing payment by these affiliates under the
terms of various existing or potential contracts. These contracts relate primarily to physical and financial
transactions in energy commodities and related services, and operating lease obligations. The maximum
potential payment under these guarantees was $180 million and $200 million at December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively, of which $176 million and $169 million, respectively, related to parental guarantees of
existing or potential subsidiary obligations that are reflected as liabilities in Nicor’s consolidated balance
sheet when incurred by the subsidiaries. The remaining $4 million and $30 million of maximum potential
payments at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, related to guarantees on behalif of Nicor Energy
and guarantees of operating lease obligations that are not reflected as liabilities in Nicor’s consolidated
balance sheet.

Tropic Equipment Leasing Inc. {TEL), a wholly owned subsidiary of Nicor, holds the company’s
interests in Triton. TEL has a contingent liability to restore to zero any deficit in its equity account for
income tax purposes in the unlikely event that Triton is liquidated and a deficit balance remains. This
contingent liability continues for the life of the Triton partnership and any payment is effectively limited
to the assets of TEL, which were about $3 million and $11 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. Nicor believes the likelihood of any such payment by TEL is remote.

Performance guarantees. Nicor Services markets separately priced product warranty contracts that
provide for the repair of heating, ventilation and air conditioning (HVAC) equipment, natural gas lines,
and other appliances within homes. Revenues from these product warranty contracts are recognized
ratably over the coverage period, and repair costs are charged to expense as incurred. Repair expenses of
$1.5 million and $2.0 million were incurred in 2003 and 2002, respectively. Prior to 2002, the obligation
under these contracts was borne by a third party.

Indemmnities. In certain instances, Nicor has undertaken to indemnify current property owners and others
against costs associated with the effects and/or remediation of contaminated sites for which the company
may be responsible under applicable federal or state environmental laws. Nicor has also indemnified, to
the fullest extent permitted under the laws of the State of Illinois and any other applicable laws, its present
and former directors, officers and employees against expenses they may incur in connection with
litigation they are a party to by reason of their association with the company, subject to certain
limitations. It is not possible to estimate the maximum potential payment under these indemnifications.
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19. CONTINGENCIES

The following contingencies of Nicor are in various stages of investigation or disposition. Although in
some cases the company is unable to estimate the amount of loss reasonably possible in addition to any
amounts already recognized, it is possible that the resolution of these contingencies, either individually or
in aggregate, will require the company to take charges against, or will result in reductions in, future
earnings. [t is the opinion of management that the resolution of these contingencies, either individually or
in aggregate, could be material to earnings in a particular period but is not expected to have a material
adverse impact on Nicor’s liquidity or financial condition.

Performance-Based Rate (PBR) Plan. Nicor Gas’ PBR plan for natural gas costs went into effect in
2000 and was terminated by the company effective January 1, 2003. Under the PBR plan, Nicor Gas’
total gas supply costs were compared to a market-sensitive benchmark. Savings and losses relative to the
benchmark were determined annually and shared equally with sales customers. The PBR plan is currently
under Illinois Commerce Commission (ICC) review,

There are allegations that the company acted improperly in connection with the PBR plan, and the ICC
and others are reviewing these allegations. On June 27, 2002 the Citizens Utility Board (CUB) filed a
motion to reopen the record in the ICC’s proceedings to review the PBR plan (the [CC Proceedings). As
a result of the motion to reopen, Nicor Gas, the Cook County State’s Attorney Office (CCSAQ), the staff
of the ICC and CUB entered into a stipulation providing for additional discovery. The Illinois Attorney
General’s Office has also intervened in this matter. In addition, the Illinois Attorney General’s Office
issued Civil Investigation Demands (CIDs) to CUB and the ICC staff. The CIDs ordered that CUB and
the ICC staff produce all documents relating to any claims that Nicor Gas may have presented, or caused
to be presented, false information related to its PBR plan. Parties who were plaintiffs in a dismissed class
action proceeding against the company could potentially intervene in these proceedings. The company
has committed to cooperate fully in the reviews of the PBR plan.

In response tc these allegations, on July 18, 2002, the Nicor Board of Directors appointed a special
committee of independent, non-management directors to conduct an inquiry into issues surrounding
natural gas purchases, sales, transportation, storage and such other matters as may come to the attention of
the special committee in the course of its investigation. The special committee presented the report of its
counsel (Report) to Nicor’s Board of Directors on October 28, 2002.

In response, the Nicor Board of Directors directed the company’s management to, among other things,
make appropriate adjustments to account for, and fully address, the adverse consequences to ratepayers of
the items noted in the Report, and conduct a detailed study of the adequacy of internal accounting and
regulatory controls. The adjustments were made in financial statements resulting in a $24.1 million
liability at December 31, 2003. Included in such $24.1 million adjustments is a $4.1 million loss
contingency. In addition, Nicor Gas estimates that there is $26.9 million due to the company from the
2002 PBR plan year, which has not been recognized in the financial statements due to uncertainties
surrounding the PBR plan. The net of these items results in a $2.8 million reimbursement the company is
seeking as of December 31, 2003, pending resolution of the proceedings discussed below. The company
has taken steps throughout 2003 to correct the weaknesses and deficiencies identified in the detailed study
of the adequacy of internal controls.

Pursuant to the agreement of all parties, including the company, the ICC re-opened the 1599 and 2000
purchased gas adjustment filings for review of certain transactions related to the PBR plan and
consolidated the reviews of the 1999-2002 purchased gas adjustment filings with the PBR plan review.
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On February 5, 2003, the CCSAQO and CUB filed a motion for $27 million in sanctions against the
company in the ICC Proceedings. In that motion, CCSAQO and CUB alleged that Nicor Gas’ responses to
certain CUB data requests were false. Also on February 5, 2003, CUB stated in a press release that, in
addition to $27 million in sanctions, it would seek additional refunds to consumers. On March 5, 2003,
the ICC staff filed a response brief in support of CUB’s motion for sanctions. On May 1, 2003, the
Administrative Law Judges issued a ruling denying CUB and CCSAQ’s motion for sanctions. CUB has
filed an appeal of the motion for sanctions with the ICC, and the ICC has indicated that it will not rule on
the appeal until the final disposition of the ICC proceedings. [t is not possible to determine how the ICC
will resolve the claims of CCSAQ, CUB or other parties to the ICC Proceedings.

In November 2003, the ICC staff, CUB, CCSAO and the Illinois Attorney General’s Office (IAGO) filed
their respective direct testimony in the ICC Proceedings. The ICC staff is seeking refunds to customers of
approximately $108 million and CUB and CCSAQ were jointly seeking refunds to customers of
approximately $143 million. The IAGO direct festimony alleges adjustments in a range from $145
million to $190 million. The [AGO testimony as filed is presently unclear as to the amount which TAGO
seeks to have refunded to customers. On February 27, 2004 the above referenced intervenors filed their
rebuttal testimony in the [CC Proceedings. In such rebuttal testimony, CUB and CCSAQO amended the
alieged amount to be refunded to customers from approximately $143 million to $190 million. Nicor Gas
filed rebuttal testimony in January 2004, which is consistent with the findings of the special committee
Report and, as noted above, seeks a reimbursement to Nicor Gas of approximately $2.8 million.

Nicor is unable to predict the outcome of any of the foregoing reviews or the company’s potential
exposure thereunder. Because the PBR plan and historical gas costs are still under ICC review, the final
outcome could be materially different than the amounts reflected in the company’s financial statements as
of December 31, 2003.

Nicor Emergy. Nicor is a 50-percent owner of Nicor Energy, a retail energy marketing joint venture with
Dynegy Marketing and Trade.

As aresult of an audit and review process in 2002, accounting irregularities were identified at Nicor
Energy. Appropriate accounting adjustments were made by Nicor in restated financial statements
previously filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).

Nicor Energy has disposed of all of its customer accounts and is in the process of liquidating its
remaining assets and resolving remaining contingent liabilities. Nicor’s investment in Nicor Energy was
written off in the third quarter of 2002 due to the belief at that time that Nicor ultimately would not
recover its investment balance. During 2003, Nicor recorded gains of $9.6 miilion upon the receipt of
cash from Nicor Energy. Any future gains or losses are expected to be minimal. Nicor’s maximum
exposure under guarantee commitments on behalf of Nicor Energy as of December 31, 2003 was about 33
million. Nicor believes it is unlikely that payments will be required under these guarantees.

On December 10, 2003, the United States Attorney for the Northern District of Illinois indicted three
former employees of Nicor Energy and an outside lawyer for Nicor Energy. The indictments alleged that
the defendants fraudulently deprived Nicor Energy, a 50/50 joint venture between Nicor Inc. and Dynegy
Inc., of their honest services and caused a loss to investors in Nicor Inc. and Dynegy Inc. During the time
period covered by the indictments, Nicor Energy was a stand alone entity with its own management and
was operated independently from Nicor Inc. and Nicor Gas. None of the individuals indicted are
employees of Nicor Inc. or Nicor Gas nor were they at the time of the charged conduct. The three former
employees of Nicor Energy have pled guilty to the charges. Separately, on December 10, 2003, the SEC
filed its own civil enforcement action against the same three former employees and one additional former




Nicor Ine. Page 57

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

employee of Nicor Energy. While Nicor is unable to predict the final outcome of these matters, the
resolution of such matters is not expected to have a material adverse impact on the company’s financial
condition or results of operations.

SEC and U.S. Attorney Inquiries. In 2002, the staff of the SEC informed Nicor and Nicor Energy that
the SEC is conducting a formal inquiry regarding both the PBR plar and Nicor Energy. A representative
of the Office of the United States Attorney for the Northern District of Illinois has notified Nicor that that
office is conducting an inquiry on the same matters that the SEC is investigating, and a grand jury is also
reviewing these matters. Nicor is unable to predict the outcome of these inquiries or Nicor’s potential
exposure related thereto and has not recorded a liability associated with the outcome of these
contingencies.

Securities Class Actions. Following a July 18, 2002 Nicor press release concerning Nicor Energy and
the PBR plan, several purported class actions were brought against Nicor, Thomas Fisher (Chairman and
CEO) and Kathleen Halloran (former Executive Vice President Finance and Administration and cusrrent
Executive Vice President and Chief Risk Officer). The actions were brought in the United States District
Court for the Northern District of Illinois, Eastern Division, and have been consolidated. On February 14,
2003, plaintiffs filed an amended complaint adding as defendants George Behrens (Vice President of
Administration and Treasurer), Philip Cali (former Executive Vice President of Operations) and Arthur
Andersen LLP, the company’s former independent auditor. The plaintiffs seek to represent a class
consisting of all persons or entities who purchased Nicor common stock on the open market during the
period from November 24, 1999 through and including July 19, 2002. They allege that the defendants
violated Section 10(b) and Section 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 10b-5
thereunder. Plaintiffs allege that during the class period defendants misrepresented the PBR plan, Nicor’s
historical financial condition and results of operations, and its future prospects. The class is seeking
compensatory damages, prejudgment interest, and attorneys’ fees and costs. On March 31, 2003, Nicor
filed a Motion to Dismiss. On February 12, 2004, the Court denied Nicor’s Motion to Dismiss.
Discovery is expected to commence in the near future. Nicor is unable to predict the outcome of this
litigation or Nicor’s potential exposure related thereto and has not recorded a liability associated with the
outcome of this contingency.

Shareholder Derivative Lawsuits. Also following Nicor’s issuance of the press release concerning
Nicor Energy and the PBR plan, three purported derivative lawsuits were brought against Thomas Fisher
(Chairman and CEQ), Kathleen Halloran (former Executive Vice President Finance and Administration
and current Executive Vice President and Chief Risk Officer) and all members of Nicor’s Board of
Directors (the “individual defendants™). Nicor was named as a nominal defendant in all three suits, which
have since been consolidated in an amended complaint. The actions were brought in the Circuit Court of
Cook County, Illinois, Chancery Division. The plaintiffs allege that the individual defendants breached
their fiduciary duties to Nicor by allegedly causing or allowing Nicor to disseminate to the market
materially misleading and inaccurate information, and failing to establish and maintain adequate
accounting controls. Plaintiffs also contend that two of the defendants (Mr. Fisher and Mr. Birdsall)
engaged in improper insider selling of Nicor stock at inflated prices. The plaintiffs seek compensatory
and punitive damages, attorneys’ fees and costs, and other relief against the individual defendants on
behalf of Nicor but do not seek any damages against the company. On May &, 2003, Nicor filed a Motion
to Dismiss. On October 7, 2003, the Court granted Nicor’s Motion to Dismiss and Plaintiffs were granted
leave to file a Consolidated Third Amended Complaint. In November 2003, the Plaintiffs filed a
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Consclidated Third Amended Complaint and in December 2003, Nicor filed a Motion to Dismiss. The
Court is set to rule on Nicor’s Motion to Dismiss on March 26, 2004. Nicor is unable to predict the
outcome of this litigation or Nicor’s potential exposure related thereto and has not recorded a liability
associated with the outcome of this contingency.

Fixed Bill Service. On April 29, 2003, a second amended purported class action complaint was filed in
the Circuit Court of Cook County, [llinois against Nicor Energy Services Company (Nicor Services)
alleging violation of the Illinois Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Practices Act (ICFA) by Nicor Services
relating to the fixed bill service offered by Nicor Services. Nicor Services offered a fixed bill product
under which it paid the annual gas service portion of a customer’s Nicor Gas utility bill in exchange for
twelve equal monthly payments by the customer to Nicor Services, regardless of changes in the price of
natural gas or weather. The plaintiff is seeking compensatory damages, prejudgment and postjudgment
interest, punitive damages, attorneys’ fees and injunctive relief. Nicor is unable to predict the outcome of
this litigation or to reasonably estimate its potential exposure related thereto and has not recorded a
liability associated with this contingency.

Horizon Pipeline Lien. The general contractor on the construction of the Horizon Pipeline (Horizon)
filed a $5.7 million Notice of Claim for Lien against Horizon. On May 23, 2003, Horizon filed a
Declaratory Judgment Complaint in the United States District Court for the District of Colorado seeking
resolution of this dispute. On June 23, 2003, the general contractor filed an answer and counterclaim to
Horizon’s complaint seeking in excess of $11 million in damages from Horizon. While Nicor is unable to
predict the outcome of this matter, its resolution is not expected to have a material adverse impact on the
company’s financial condition or results of operations.

Mercury. Nicor Gas has incurred, and expects to continue to incur, costs related to its historical use of
mercury in various kinds of company equipment.

Nicor Gas is a defendant in several private lawsuits, all in the Circuit Courts of Cook and DuPage
Counties, Iliinois, claiming a variety of unquantified damages (including bodily injury, property and
punitive damages) allegedly caused by mercury-containing regulators. Under the terms of a class action
settlement agreement, Nicor Gas will continue, until 2006, to provide medical screening to persons
exposed to mercury from its equipment, and will use its best efforts to replace any remaining inside
residential mercury regulators by 2005. The class action settlement permitted class members to “opt out”
of the settlement and pursue their claims individually. Nicor is currently defending claims brought by 28
households.

As of December 31, 2003, Nicor Gas had remaining an estimated liability of $21.9 million, representing
management’s best estimate of future costs, including potential liabilities relating to remaining lawsuits,
based on an evaluation of currently available information. Actual costs may vary from this estimate. The
company will continue to reassess its estimated obligation and will record any necessary adjustment,
which could be material to operating results in the period recorded.

Nicor Gas continues to pursue recovery from insurers and independent contractors that had performed
work for the company, but believes that it has now collected the majority of such recoveries. When
received, these recoveries are recorded as a reduction to gas distribution operating expense. Nicor Gas
recovered approximately $18 million and $20 million of pretax mercury-related costs, net of legal fees,
from insurers and independent contractors in 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The final disposition of these mercury-related matters is not expected to have a material adverse impact
on the company’s financial condition.
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Manufactured Gas Plant Sites. Manufactured gas plants were used in the 1800°s and early to mid
1900’s to produce manufactured gas from coal, creating a coal tar byproduct. Current environmental laws
may require the cleanup of coal tar at certain former manufactured gas plant sites.

To date, Nicor Gas has identified about 40 properties for which it may, in part, be responsible. Most of
these properties are not presently owned by the company. Information regarding preliminary site reviews
has been presented to the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA) for certain properties. More
detailed investigations and remedial activities are complete, in progress or planned at many of these sites.
The results of the detailed site-by-site investigations determine the extent additional remediation is
necessary and provide a basis for estimating additional future costs which, based on industry experience,
could be significant. In accordance with ICC authorization, the company is and has been recovering these
costs from its customers, subject to annual prudence reviews.

In December 2001, a purported class action lawsuit was filed against Exelon Corporation,
Commonwealth Edison Company and Nicor Gas in the Circuit Court of Cook County alleging, among
other things, that the ongoing cleanup of a former manufactured gas plant site in Oak Park, Iilinois is
inadequate. Since then, additional lawsuits have been filed related to this same former manufactured gas
plant site. These lawsuits seek, in part, unspecified damages for property damage, nuisance, and various
personal injuries that allegediy resulted from exposure to contaminants allegedly emanating

from the site, and punitive damages. Management cannot predict the outcome of this litigation or the
company’s potential exposure thereto and has not recorded a liability associated with this contingency.

In April 2002, Nicor Gas was named as a defendant, together with Commonwealth Edison Company, in a
lawsuit brought by the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago (the MWRDGC)
under the Federal Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act seeking
recovery of past and future remediation costs and a declaration of the level of appropriate cleanup for a
former manufactured gas plant site in Skokie, Illinois now owned by the MWRDGC. In January 2003,
the suit was amended to include a claim under the Federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The
suit was filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of [llinois. Management cannot
predict the outcome of this litigation or the company’s potential exposure thereto and has not recorded a
liability associated with this contingency.

Since costs and recoveries relating to the cleanup of manufactured gas plant sites are passed directly
through to customers in accordance with ICC regulations, subject to an annual ICC prudence review, the
final disposition of manufactured gas plant matters is not expected to have a material impact on the
company’s financial condition or results of operations.

Other. In addition to the matters set forth above, the company is involved in legal or administrative
proceedings before various courts and agencies with respect to general claims, rates, taxes, environmental
and other matters. Although unable to determine the ultimate outcome of these other contingencies,
management believes that it has recorded appropriate liabilities when reasonably estimable.
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20. QUARTERLY RESULTS (UNAUDITED)
Summarized quarterly financial data is presented below (in millions, except per share data).
Quarter ended
Mar. 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
2003
Operating revenues § L1713 § 4528 § 2948 § 7439
Operating income 81.3 38.9 4.2 65.0
Income before cumulative effect of
accounting change 56.4 23.8 S 35.1
Net income 45.9 23.8 5 35.1
Earnings per common share
Basic
Before cumulative effect of accounting change 1.14 54 01 30
Basic earnings per share 1.04 54 01 80
Diluted
Before cumulative effect of accounting change 1.14 54 01 79
Diluted earnings per share 1.04 54 01 79
2002
Operating revenues § 580 § 3522 § 2524 § 7047
Operating income 65.0 437 53.6 64.3
Net income 36.5 224 29.8 393
Earnings per common share
Basic .82 51 .68 .89
Diluted .82 .50 67 .89

Effective January 1, 2003, Nicor Gas began using the straight-line method for allocating annual

depreciation to interim periods. Nicor’s 2002 results include gas distribution depreciation allocated based

upon the level of weather-normalized gas deliveries. While this change had a significant impact on
quarterly results, it has no impact on depreciation for the full year. Had 2002 depreciation been allocated

on a straight-line basis, it is estimated that depreciation expense would have been lower by approximately
$22 miilion and $7 million in the first and fourth quarters of 2002, respectively, and higher by

approximately $12 million and $17 million in the second and third quarters of 2002, respectively.

The fourth quarter of 2003 included the impact of a new hedge accounting interpretation that reduced

pretax income of Nicor Enerchange by $4 million. The fourth quarter of 2003 also included the impact of

a higher effective income tax rate as compared to 2002 relating to adjustments of deferred tax accounts.

The fourth quarter of 2002 included the positive impact of a $9 million pretax mercury reserve adjustment

and the negative impact of establishing a $4.1 million pretax loss contingency reserve related to the PBR

plan review,

HEREE
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Ttem 9.  Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

Previously filed in Nicor’s 2003 Definitive Proxy Statement filed on March 27, 2003 under the
Independent Public Accountants section.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Attached as exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 to this Annual Report are certifications of the company’s CEQO and the
CFO required in accord with Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Section 302
Certifications™). This portion of our Annual Report on Form 10-K discloses the results of our evaluation
of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2003 referred to in paragraphs (4) and (5) of
the Section 302 Certification and should be read in conjunction with the Section 302 Certifications for a
more complete understanding of the topics presented.

In July 2002, in response to allegations that Nicor Gas acted improperly in connection with its
performance-based rate plan for natural gas costs, the Nicor Board of Directors appointed a special
committee of independent, non-management directors to conduct an inquiry into issues surrounding
natural gas purchases, sales, transportation and storage, and certain other matters. In addition, following
up on the work of the committee, the Nicor Board of Directors later directed Nicor’s management to,
among other things, (a) undertake a reaudit of the Nicor and Nicor Gas financial statements for the years
1999 through 2001 and a review of subsequent quarterly periods, (b) amend any filings with the SEC as
necessary, and (c) conduct a detailed study of the adequacy of internal accounting and regulatory controls.
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Contingencies.

To assist management in assessing the control environment and related issues associated with Nicor’s
natural gas supply, transport, storage and marketing activities, including Nicor Gas Hub administration
and Nicor Enerchange trading (“gas supply activities”), Nicor retained a consulting firm in the fourth
quarter of 2002 with experience in internal controls and the energy industry that is not and has not been
the company’s external auditor.

Through this review of gas supply activities (“gas supply review”), it was observed that:

e Although key controls have been designed to facilitate the complete and accurate capture and
processing of gas supply activities, many control activities are not standardized. As such, the
reliability and effectiveness of these control processes are dependent on interpretation and execution
by business unit personnel.

o  Existing processes provide limited oversight and monitoring to ensure that transaction activities and
control procedures are performed reliably and consistent with management expectations.

o As aresult, gas supply activities are not adequately documented, are overly dependent on people, and
are not supported by formal training or communication of controls.

In light of the foregoing, and reflecting the consultant’s work related to gas supply activities, management
concluded that the following steps related to gas supply activities should be undertaken:

o Enhance the effectiveness of corporate governance and independent oversight of gas supply activities
by creating a formal risk management function and expanding senior management oversight through
the company’s risk management committee.

¢ Enhance senior management monitoring and oversight of gas supply activities by creating formal
reporting frameworks designed to effectively communicate performance, existing risk
profile/position, and compliance with policies/procedures.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures (continued)

o  Enhance the communication of senior management’s expectations regarding objectives, risk
tolerances, and business practices in connection with gas supply activities by creating codified and
standardized policies and procedures for these activities.

o  Given the high degree of regulatory oversight and review over gas supply activities, develop formal
documentation and retention standards for key decision-making and transaction activities that are
subject to regulatory review.

o For each business unit responsible for gas supply contract negotiation and execttion, establish a
dedicated contract administration function as well as a contract compliance program.

o Develop formal contracting standards, including practices and procedures surrounding contract
execution, contract review and approval and contract modification.

In May 2002, the company engaged new accountants, Deloitte & Touche LLP (“D&T”), who were asked
in October 2002 to audit the company’s 1999, 2000 and 2001 restated financial statements in addition to
its audit of the company’s 2002 financial statements. In connection with the completion of its audit of,
and the issuance of an unqualified report on Nicor’s and Nicor Gas’ restated financial statements for the
years ended December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001, D&T issued a letter dated February 28, 2003 (the “D&T
Letter”), in which it identified to management and the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors certain
deficiencies that existed in the design or operation of Nicor Gas’ internal accounting controls which,
considered collectively, constituted a material weakness in Nicor Gas’ internal controis pursuant to
standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Such deficiencies at
Nicor Gas’ regulated gas purchasing operations included significant weaknesses in the design of controls
surrounding execution, monitoring and accounting for gas commodity, transportation, storage and related
contracts due, in part, to the lack of a centralized independent back office for these activities. D&T also
concluded that these weaknesses had resulited in errors that affected gas purchase costs, inventory,
regulatory assets and liabilities, and results of the performance-based rate plan, and led to a restatement of
Nicor’s and Nicor Gas’ financial statements. D&T made the following recommendations to Nicor and
Nicor Gas with respect to these deficiencies:

o Establish a centralized, independent back office function for gas supply activities, staffed with an
adequate number of appropriately skilled individuals.

e Charge the gas supply back office function with responsibility for, among other matters, contract
analysis to determine correct accounting treatment, ensuring that contract terms are followed,
overseeing the contract approval process and contract administration.

The company carried out an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of the company’s
management, inciuding its principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness
of the design and operation of the company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the
period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K (the “Evaluation”).

During the course of the Evaluation, the company’s principal executive officer and principal financial
officer took note of, and considered as part of the company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rule 13a-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934), additional procedures performed and
controls instituted by the company subsequent to the receipt of the D&T Letter (the “Additional
Procedures™) to supplement its internal controls in order to mitigate the effect of the weaknesses and
deficiencies identified in the gas supply review and the D&T Letter and to prevent misstatements or
omissions in its consolidated financial statements resulting from such factors. In designing and
evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and
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Item SA. Controls and Procedures (concluded)

procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of
achieving the desired control objectives, and management is required to apply its judgment in evaluating
the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Based on the Evaluation, the company’s
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the company’s disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the
Additional Procedures, were effective at the reasonable assurance level to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by the company in reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC
rules and forms.

Management has considered the matters referred to above, D&T’s recommendations with respect thereto
and the gas supply review in connection with management’s general evaluation of the company’s internal
controls in particular and its disclosure controls and procedures generally. The company has accepted the
recommendations identified in the D&T Letter and in the gas supply review. The company’s
management assigned a high priority to the short-term and long-term correction of the internal control
weaknesses and deficiencies identified by D&T and in the gas supply review, and has implemented
changes to the company’s policies, procedures, systems and personnel to address these issues. The
company’s management has implemented the following changes based upon the D&T Letter and the gas
supply review:

o The company has dedicated additional internal audit and external resources to the assessment of the
internal controls of the company.

o New policies with respect to the approval and authorization of all transactions related to gas supply
activities and affiliated transactions have been developed and implemented.

o Gas supply purchasing testing is being regularly performed to verify that prices are consistent with
market rates.
Personnel in gas supply accounting now report directly to the company’s Controller.

o The company’s Risk Management Committee has increased its oversight level, and a new Chief Risk
Officer position has been established.

o Substantial effort has been put forth on documentation and implementation of appropriate processes,
procedures and controls.

e The company has implemented, and will continue to implement, controls designed to ensure
compliance with regulatory rules and mandates.

o New contract administration processes have been implemented to provide a more effective method of
contract administration.

The steps taken throughout 2003 to correct the weaknesses and deficiencies identified in the gas supply
review and the D&T Letter constitute significant changes in internal controls over financial reporting in
the fourth quarter of 2003. The company will continue to review and implement enhancements to
improve the effectiveness of its disclosure controls and procedures and will take further actions as
dictated by such continuing reviews.
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PART IIT

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information on directors is contained under the Election of Directors and Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance sections in Nicor’s Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed on or about
March 5, 2004, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Information on the audit committee financial expert is contained under the Audit Committee Report
section in Nicor’s Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed on or about March 5, 2004, and is incorporated
herein by reference.

Information on executive officers is included in Part I, Executive Officers of Registrant, beginning on
page 6 and is incorporated herein by reference. Executive officers of the company are elected annually by
the Board of Directors.

In addition, information on executive officers is contained under the Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance section in Nicor’s Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed on or about March 5,
2004, and is incorporated herein by reference.

The company has adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to the company’s directors, officers and
employees, including its principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting
officer or controller or persons performing similar functions. We intend to satisfy the disclosure
requirements under Item 10 of Form 8-K regarding an amendment to or waiver from a provision of our
Code of Fthics that applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal
accounting officer or controlier or persons performing similar functions and that relates to certain topics
by posting such information on our Web site at www.nicor.com.

The company has disciosed its Code of Ethics, Audit Committee Charter, Corporate Governance Charter,
Compensation Committee Charter, and Corporate Governance Guidelines on its Web site at
www.nicor.com. Any shareholder may request this information in print form from the company’s
Investor Relations department.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information on executive compensation is contained under the Compensation Committee Report and
Executive Compensation sections in Nicor’s Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed on or about March 3,
2004, and is incorporated herein by reference.
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e Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficizl Owners and Management and Related
== Stockholder Matters

— Information on security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is contained under the
= Security Ownership of Management and Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock sections in Nicor’s
Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed on or about March 5, 2004, and is incorporated herein by reference.

= EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

@ ® ©
Number of securities
— remaining available for
_ Number of securities to | Weighted-average future issuance under equity
] be issued upon exercise | exercise price of compensation plans
] of outstanding options, | outstanding options, | (excluding securities
: Plan category warrants, and rights warrants, and rights | reflected in column (a))
= Equity compensation
e plans approved by
_— security holders 1,245,836 $33.96 1,367,179 (1)
Equity compensation
plans not approved by
security hoiders - - -
Total 1,245,836 $33.96 1,367,179

(1) This number includes 855,346 shares issuable under the 1997 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as
amended. These shares can be used for stock options, alternative stock rights, restricted stock and
performance award units, including awards under the Stock Deferral Plan, which allows eligible key
executives and managerial employees to convert up to 50% of their cash awards from annual and
long-term incentive plans into Nicor common stock, the receipt of which is deferred.

ftem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information about certain relationships and related transactions is contained under the Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions section in Nicor’s Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed on or
about March 5, 2004, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information on principal accountant fees and services is contained under the Principal Accountant Fees
and Services section in Nicor’s Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed on or about March 5, 2004, and is
incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV -

b bl

Item 15. [Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form §-K

gl b

(a) 1) Financial Statements:

See Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, on page 31 filed herewith, for a list
of financial statements.

Ghbdecdild

2) Financial Statement Schedules:

IR T AN EHT

Schedule
Number Page —
- Independent Auditors’ Report 32
II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 67

Schedules other than those listed are omitted because they are not applicable.

3) Exhibits Filed:

b i bl ud ket bl

See Exhibit Index beginning on page 69 filed herewith.

IvH]

®) On October 31, 2003, Nicor furnished a Form 8-K*, under Items 7 and 12, regarding a press
release dated October 30, 2003 announcing earnings for the quarter ended September 30, 2003
and revising 2003 earnings cutlock.

iabidili

ii

On November 21, 2003, Nicor filed a Form 8-K, under Item 5, regarding a press release dated
November 21, 2003 announcing key executive appointments.

On December 3, 2003, Nicor filed a Form 8-K, under Item 9, regarding an analyst plr‘esematﬁon
of December 3, 2003.

= * This furnished Form 8-K is not to be deemed filed or incorporated by reference into any
filing.
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Schedule 11
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(millions)
Additions
Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance
beginning costs and other at end
Description of period expenses accounts Deductions of period
2003
Allowance for uncollectible
accounts receivable S 16.% $ 30.9 $ - $ 26.6 (a) $ 21.2
Accrued mercury-related costs 23.4 - - 1.5 (b) 21.9
2002
Allowance for uncollectible
accounts receivable $ 12.3 $ 27.4 $ - $ 228 (a) § 16.9
Accrued mercury-related costs 37.0 - - 13.6 (c) 234
2001
Allowance for uncollectible
accounts receivable $ 14.5 $ 26.1 $ - $ 283 (a) $ 12.3
Accrued mercury-related costs 78.0 - - 41.0 (c) 37.0

(a) Accounts receivable written off, net of recoveries.

(b) Expenditures.

(c) Expenditures and reserve reduction to reflect new estimate.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date March 1, 2004

Nicor Inc.

/s/ RICHARD L. HAWLEY
Richard L. Hawley
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on March 1, 2004.

Signature

/s/ THOMAS L. FISHER
Thomas L. Fisher
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ RICHARD L. HAWLEY
Richard L. Hawley
(Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ JEFFREY L. METZ
Jeffrey L. Metz
(Principal Accounting Officer)

ROBERT M. BEAVERS, JR.*
BRUCE P. BICKNER*

JOHN H. BIRDSALL, II[*
THOMAS A. DONAHOE*
JOHN E. JONES*

DENNIS J. KELLER*
WILLIAM A. OSBORN*
JOHN RAU*

JOHN F. RIORDAN*
RUSS M. STROBEL*

PATRICIA A. WIER*

Title

Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Vice President and Controller

Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director

Director

Director

By /s/ JEFFREY L. METZ

Jeffrey L. Metz
(Attorney-in-fact)
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Exhibit Index
Exhibit
Number

3.01 *

3.02 *
3.03 *
3.04 *
3.05 *
3.06 *
3.07 *
3.08 *
3.09 *
4.01 *
4.02 *
4.03 *
4.04 *

Description of Document

Articles of Incorporation of the company. (File No. 2-55451, Form S-14, Nicor Inc.,
Exhibit 1-03 and Exhibit B of Amendment No. 1 thereto.)

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of the company. (Proxy Statement dated April
20, 1979, Nicor Inc., Item 3 thereto.)

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of the company. (File No. 2-68777, Form S-16,
Nicor Inc., Exhibit 2-01.)

Amendment to Articles of [ncorporation of the company. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-K
for 1985, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 3-03.)

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of the company. (Proxy Statement dated March
12, 1987, Nicor Inc., Exhibit A and Exhibit B thereto.)

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of the company. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-K
for 1992, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 3-06.)

Amendments to Articles of Incorporation of the company. (Proxy Statement dated
March 9, 1994, Nicor Inc., Exhibit A-1 and Exhibit B thereto.) .

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of the company. (Proxy Statement dated March
6, 1998, Nicor Inc., Item 2 thereto.)

By-Laws of the company as amended by the company’s Board of Directors on January
15, 2004. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-K for 2003, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 3.09.)

Indenture of Commonwealth Edison Company to Continental [ilinois National Bank and
Trust Company of Chicago, Trustee, dated as of January 1, 1954. (File No. 1-7296, Form
10-K for 1995, Nicor Gas, Exhibit 4.01.)

Indenture of Adoption of Nicor Gas to Continental Illinois National Bank and Trust
Company of Chicago, Trustee, dated February 9, 1954. (File No. 1-7296, Form 10-K for
1995, Nicor Gas, Exhibit 4.02.)

Shareholder Rights Agreement, dated September 9, 1997, between the company and
Harris Trust and Savings Bank, as Rights Agent. (File No. 1-7297, Form 8-K for
September 1997, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 1.)

Supplemental Indenture, dated February 15, 1998, of Nicor Gas to Harris Trust and
Savings Bank, Trustee, under Indenture dated as of January 1, 1954. (File No. 1-7296,
Form 10-K for 1997, Nicor Gas, Exhibit 4.19.}
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Exhibit Index (comtinued)

iy

Exhibit
Number Description of Document

| r‘ AT (W

4.05 * Supplemental Indenture, dated February 1, 1999, of Nicor Gas to Harris Trust and 5
Savings Bank, Trustee, under Indenture dated as of January 1, 1954. (File No. 1-7296, -
Form 10-K for 1998, Nicor Gas, Exhibit 4.19.)

b b d ik | ‘

4.06 * Supplemental Indenture, dated February 1, 2001, of Nicor Gas to BNY Midwest Trust .
Company, Trustee, under Indenture dated as of January 1, 1954. (File No. 1-7296, Form =
10-K for 2000, Nicor Gas, Exhibit 4.17.) o

4.07 * Supplemental Indenture, dated May 15, 2001, of Nicor Gas to BNY Midwest Trust =
Company, Trustee, under Indenture dated as of Januvary 1, 1954. (File No. 1-7296, Form -
10-Q for June 2001, Nicor Gas, Exhibit 4.01.)

4.08 *  Supplemental Indenture, dated August 15, 2001, of Nicor Gas to BNY Midwest Trust )
Company, Trustee, under Indenture dated as of January 1, 1954. (File No. 1-7296, Form B
10-Q for September 2001, Nicor Gas, Exhibit 4.01.)

4.09 *  Supplemental Indenture, dated December 15, 2001, of Nicor Gas to BNY Midwest Trust -
Company, Trustee, under Indenture dated as of January 1, 1954. (File No. 1-7296, Form =
10-K for 2001, Nicor Gas, Exhibit 4.20.)

4.10 * Supplemental Indenture, dated December 1, 2003, of Nicor Gas to BNY Midwest Trust A
Company, Trustee, under [ndenture dated as of January 1, 1954. (File No. 1-7297, Form
10-K for 2003, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 4.10.)

ok g bt g bl il b 1 {

4.11 * Supplemental Indenture, dated December 1, 2003, of Nicor Gas to BNY Midwest Trust
Company, Trustee, under Indenture dated as of January 1, 1954. (File No. 1-7297, Form
10-K for 2003, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 4.11.) -

4.12 *  Supplemental Indenture, dated December 1, 2003, of Nicor Gas to BNY Midwest Trust ‘
Company, Trustee, under Indenture dated as of January 1, 1954. (File No. 1-7297, Form -
10-K for 2003, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 4.12.) -

s gadid b e bl bk s

10.01 * 1984 Nicor Officers’ Capital Accumulation Plan Participation Agreement. (File No. ]
1-7297, Form 10-K for 1988, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 10-10.) =

2

*

10.01(a) 1985 Nicor Officers’ Capital Accumulation Plan Participation Agreement. (File No.

1-7297, Form 10-K for 1988, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 10-10(a).)

10.02 * 1984 Nicor Directors’ Capital Accumulation Plan Participation Agreement. (File No. 5
1-7297, Form 10-K for 1983, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 10-13.)

4
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10.02(a) * 1985 Nicor Directors’ Capital Accumulation Plan Participation Agreement. (File No.
1-7297, Form 10-K for 1984, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 10-13(a).)

10.03 * Directors’ Deferred Compensation Plan. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-K for 1583, Nicor -
Inc., Exhibit 10-16.) -
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Exhibit Index (continwed)

Exhibit
Number Description of Document

: 10.04 * Directors’ Pension Plan. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-K for 1985, Nicor Inc., Exhibit
- 10-18.)

10.05 * Flexible Spending Account for Executives. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-K for 1986, Nicor
— Inc., Exhibit 10-20.)

10.06 *  Amendment and Restatement of the Nicor Gas Incentive Compensation Plan. (File No.
1-7297, Form 10-K for 1986, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 10-21.)

10.07 * Nicor Inc. 1989 Long-Term Incentive Plan. (Filed with Nicor Inc. Proxy Statement,
dated April 20, 1989, Exhibit A.)

10.08 * Nicor Salary Deferral Plan. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-K for 1989, Nicor Inc., Exhibit
10-29.)

o 10.09 * Nicor Inc. Stock Deferral Plan. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-Q for September 1996, Nicor
Inc., Exhibit 10.01.)

10.10 *  Amendment to Nicor Inc. Stock Deferral Plan. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-K for 1997,
Nicor Inc., Exhibit 16.22)

o 10.11 * Nicor Inc. 1995 Directors’ Stock Plan. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-Q for September
1996, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 10.02.)

10.12 *  Nicor Inc. 1997 Long-Term Incentive Plan. (Filed as appendix to the Nicor Inc. Proxy
Statement, dated March 6, 1997.)

10.13 *  Security Payment Plan. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-K for 1999, Nicor Inc., Exhibit

10.24)
i0.14 *  Amendment and Restatement of Nicor Gas Supplementary Retirement Plan. (File No.
— 1-7257, Form 10-Q for March 2000, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 10.01.)
““““““ 10.15 *  Amendment and Restatement of Nicor Gas Supplementary Savings Plan. (File No.

1-7297, Form 10-Q for March 2000, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 10.02.)

10.16 *  TFirst Amendment to Nicor Salary Deferral Plan. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-Q for March
2000, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 10.03.)

10.17

3

First Amendment to Agreements Restating 1984 and 1985 Nicor Capital Accumulation
Plan Participation Agreements for Officers and Directors. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-Q
for March 2000, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 10.04.)

10.18 *  First Amendment to Nicor 1989 Long-Term Incentive Plan. (File No. 1-7297, Form

10-Q for March 2000, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 10.05.)
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Exhibit Index (comtinued)

Exhibit
10.19 *
10.20 *
10.21 *
10.22 *
10.23 *
10.24 #
10.25 *
10.26 *
10.27 *
10.28 *
10.29 *
10.30 *
10.31 *
10.32 *

Description of Document

First Amendment to Nicor 1997 Long-Term Incentive Plan. (File No. 1-7297, Form
10-Q for March 2000, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 10.06.)

Second Amendment to Nicor Stock Deferral Plan. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-Q for
March 2000, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 10.07.)

Form of Change-in-Control Agreement, dated june 2, 2000, between Nicor Inc. and Ms.
Halloran. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-Q for June 2000, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 10.01.)

Change-~in-Control Agreement, dated June 2, 2000, between Nicor Inc. and Mr. Fisher.
(File No. 1-7297, Form 10-K for 2000, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 10.28.)

2001 Long-Term Incentive Program. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-Q for March 2001, Nicor
Inc., Exhibit 10.01.)

Change-in-Control Agreement, dated December 20, 2000, between Nicor Inc. and Mr.
Strobel. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-K for 2001, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 10.31.)

2002 Long-Term Incentive Program. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-Q for March 2002, Nicor
Inc., Exhibit 10.01.)

First Amendment to the Change-in-Control Agreement, dated November 22, 2002,
between Nicor Inc. and Mr. Strobel. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-K for 2002, Nicor Inc.,
Exhibit 10.26.)

Supplemental Retirement Benefit Agreement between Nicor Inc. and Mr. Strobel.
(File No. 1-7297, Form 10-K for 2001, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 10.32.)

Nicor Inc. Supplemental Senior Officer Retirement Plan. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-K
for 2002, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 10.28.)

2003 Long-Term Incentive Program. (File No, 1-7297, Form 10-Q for March 2003, Nicor
Inc., Exhibit 10.01.)

Change-in-Control Agreement, dated November 22, 2002, between Nicor Inc. and Mr.
Dodge. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-K for 2003, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 10.30.)

Change-in-Control Agreement, dated November 25, 2002, between Nicor Inc. and Mr.
Gracey. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-K for 2003, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 10.31.)

Change-in-Control Agreement, dated December 8, 2003, between Nicor Inc. and Mr.
Hawley. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-K for 2003, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 10.32.)

Exhibits 10.01 through 10.32 constitute management contracts and compensatory plans
and arrangements required to be filed as exhibits to this Form 10-K pursuant to Item14(c)
of Form 10-K.

"‘r]
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Exhibit Index (concluded)

Exhibit
Number Description of Document
18.01 *  Preferability Letter regarding Change in Accounting of Interim Depreciation. (File No.
“““ 1-7297, Form 10-Q for March 2003, Exhibit 18.01.)
21.01 * Subsidiaries. (File No. 69-228, Form U-3A-2 for 2003, Nicor Inc., Item 1.)
23.01 Independent Auditors’ Consent.
24.01 * Powers of Attorney. (File No. 1-7297, Form 10-K for 2003, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 24.01.)
N 31.1 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification.
; 31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification.
: 32.1 Section 1350 Certification.
~ 322 Section 1350 Certification.
99.01 * Form of Letter to Shareholders relating to Shareholder Rights Agreement. (File No.

1-7297, Form 8-K for September 1997, Nicor Inc., Exhibit 2.}

*  These exhibits have been previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commaission as exhibits
. to registration statements or to other filings with the Commission and are incorporated herein as
exhibits by reference. The file number and exhibit number of each such exhibit, where applicable, are
stated, in parentheses, in the description of such exhibit.

Upon written request, the company will furnish free of charge a copy of any exhibit. Requests should be
sent to Investor Relations at the corporate headquarters.
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Corporate Data

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
Nicor Inc.

P. 0. Box 3014

Naperville, IL 80566-7014

Tel: (630) 305-9500

Fax:(630) 983-9328

Internet address: www.nicor.com

2004 ANNUAL MEETING
The Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be held at 10;30 a.m.,
Thursday, April 15, at:

The Northern Trust Company
6th Floor Assembly Room
50 South LaSalle Street
Chicago, Illinois

SHAREHOLDER INQUIRIES

Requests for Nicor's Stockholder Handbook and inquiries
regarding the following should be addressed to the Stockholder
Services Department at the corporate headqguarters:

« Dividend payments

¢ Change of address

¢ Lost stock certificates

« Automatic Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan

INVESTOR RELATIONS/MEDIA CONTACT

Shareholders, security analysts, investment managers, brokers
and media with financial questions about Nicor should contact:
Mark Knox, Assistant Secretary and Director Investor Relations.
Tel: (630) 305-9500, Ext. 2529

Upon request, Nicor will furnish the following materials
without charge:

> Annual Report

* Form 10-K

* Form 10-Q

° Mid-Year Report

» Quarterly Operating Highlights

» Periodic news releases

» Corporate Governance-related items

The above information and the Fact Book can also be found
under the Investor Section of the company’s Web site at

Www.nicor.com.

MID-YEAR REPORT

Nicor does not automatically mail mid-year reports to shareholders

whose shares are registered in the name of a bank, broker or
nominee. Anyone wishing to receive a copy of the company's
mid-year report may send a request to the Investor Relations
Department at the corporate headquarters.

& PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER

STOCK TRANSFER AND REGISTRAR
Computershare Investor Services
2 North LaSalle Street

Chicago, IL 60602

Tel: (312) 360-5100

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT AND STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

Nicor's Automatic Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase
Plan provides for the reinvestment of dividends and the opportu-
nity to make optional cash payments to purchase additional
shares of Nicor common stock. The plan is available to all regis-
tered shareholders and provides a convenient way to acquire
additional shares. Shareholders may request a prospectus
describing the plan by contacting the Stockholder Services
Department at the corporate headquarters.

COMMON STOCK DATA
Nicor common stock is listed on the:

e New York Stock Exchange
* Chicago Stock Exchange

Included in Standard and Poor's 500 Index
Ticker symbol: GAS

2003 average daily trading volume: 364,900 shares

Quarterly Common Stock Price Range and Dividends
Declared per Common Share

Stock price Dividends
High Low declared

2003
First $ 35.62 $23.70 $.4865
Second 39.30 27.05 465
Third 37.70 33.51 485
Fourth 36.62 32.03 4865

2002
First $46.20 $39.55 $ 46
Second 49.00 44.99 46
Third 47.83 18.09 46
Fourth 35.39 24.25 46

2001
First $42.38 $35.12 $ .44
Second 39.90 35.95 .44
Third 39.74 34.00 44
Fourth 42.00 37.52 44
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Nicor Inc.

Nicor

P.O. Box 3014, Naperville, IL 60566-7014 630 305-9500 www.nicor.com




